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Vision =
To drive for unity and excellence of the construction industry of Hong Kong
EEFBEER BaKE

Mission {£dp

To strengthen the sustainability of the construction industry in Hong
Kong by providing a communications platform, striving for continuous
improvement, increasing awareness of health and safety, as well as
improving skills development.
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CHAIRMAN'S MESSAGE

£V

Building a Prosperous Industry
through Collaboration

It is with immense pleasure that | introduce our 2012 Annual
Report. In celebrating our fifth anniversary, the Construction
Industry Council (CIC) continues to make meaningful progress
in serving both the construction-related sectors and the general
public.

Through this Annual Report, | hope you gain a better
understanding of what we have accomplished in the past year and
the strategic direction we are heading in. As always, our mission is
to attain industry-wide excellence to ensure our lasting growth and
prosperity in every task we tackle.

| wish first to offer an overview of the construction industry in Hong
Kong in 2012, before highlighting our achievements.

The construction industry in Hong Kong in 2012 remained robust.
Government expenditure on capital works exceeded HK$60 billion
in 2012 and the forecast is for that figure to increase in the coming
years as major infrastructure projects enter their construction
peaks. This presents the industry with challenges that the CIC
is now well positioned to mediate on between government and
industry stakeholders to ensure the timely and cost effective
delivery of these major projects as well as ongoing private sector
projects.
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Strengthening the Industry

Enhancing site safety must be the top priority for everyone at
all levels involved in the industry. Given the breakneck pace of
construction in Hong Kong, it is more important than ever to be
vigilant about workplace safety. Working with stakeholders, we
are determined to set best practices and a caring culture in place
across all work sites. While it is encouraging to note that there has
been a declining trend in the rate of industrial accidents over the
past five years this is no reason for us to become complacent.

One of our major initiatives to raise safety awareness was the
inaugural Construction Safety Week 2012 held in May, which the CIC
jointly organised with the Development Bureau and the Hong Kong
Construction Association. The week reached out to different sectors
of the construction industry as well as the public with the focus on
the industry’s target to realise “zero accident”.

| am very encouraged by the support we have so far received. As
of the end of December 2012, approximately 31,000 workers,
supervisors and professionals as well as some 530 organisations
involving locally-based contractors, subcontractors, clients and
consultants had pledged their support to the Joint Declaration put
forward at Construction Safety Week 2012. This is a good start.
Plans are already underway for Construction Safety Week 2013,
which promises to build on the momentum of 2012’s successful
event.

| also want to highlight the important work that has been done to
ensure payment protection and improve the business operating
environment of the construction industry. In consultation with
the industry we produced the Report on Security of Payment
Legislation to Improve Payment Practices in the Construction
Industry. Our recommendation for a law to be enacted to enhance
the security of payment in construction-related contracts and
to expedite the resolution of disputes was accepted by the
Development Bureau which has established a working group with
industry membership to take the issue forward. The Government
has indicated its plan to introduce a bill to the Legislative Council in
2015 to 2016.

We have an important role to play in assisting our stakeholders
to understand the implications of new laws. The construction
industry, more so than many sectors of Hong Kong’s economy, took
a keen interest in the introduction of the proposed competition
law. Before it was enacted in June 2012, we set up a task force to
present stakeholders’ views on the Competition Bill in a submission
to the Bills Committee of the Legislative Council. This task force will
continue to assist industry in understanding the broad aims of the
law and the steps required to avoid infringing it.
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Meeting Manpower Needs

We can only maintain the influential and effective role we have
achieved in the industry by staying alert to market needs and
offering new training courses to fulfil the labour demands of the
industry, one of our biggest challenges. Training is a major priority
for the CIC and in the 2011-12 training year, an impressive 2,131
trainees completed different full-time craft and supervisory training
courses, while 68,643 in-service persons completed part-time
courses.

In July, the CIC established new training grounds at Siu Lun Street
in Tuen Mun and at Tung Chau Street in Sham Shui Po, with
classes commencing at both sites in September. The expansions
align with our goal of increasing the training capacity of the
Enhanced Construction Manpower Training Scheme (ECMTS) from
1,200 per year to 2,300 for the year.

Indeed, interest in CIC training runs high, as illustrated by the
healthy turnout when the CIC held its annual open days last
April. The two-day event attracted some 1,000 visitors, including
students and members of the public. Since March 2012, 12 roving
exhibitions have been organised at different shopping centres to
promote courses and services.

The Contractor Cooperative Training Scheme (CCTS) continued
its brisk intake last year. Courses covering bar-bending and fixing,
formwork, leveller, crawler crane operation, ground investigation
operator assistant, welding, and site surveying drew enthusiastic
trainees, thereby enhancing CIC’s collaborative relationship with
our industry stakeholders.

For its part, the Construction Industry Resource Centre held fruitful
recruitment efforts, such as the job fair organised during Safety
Week in May 2012, which enabled industry officials to meet job
seekers in an informal setting.
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Communicating with the Public

Despite our efforts, there remains an old perception that the
construction industry is dirty, unsafe, unskilled, and does not
offer a career path. It is this image that is still deterring people,
especially the young, from considering joining the industry. By
creating a positive perception of the construction industry and its
modern outlook, we will spark greater curiosity in the community
and that will help us in attracting fresh blood.

One of our most successful image building initiatives to date, a
10-episode documentary, A Dream Comes True, jointly presented
by the CIC, the Development Bureau and RTHK aired on TVB Jade
early in the year. It documented the lives of industry practitioners,
their dreams, challenges and contributions to the industry, and
averaged an audience of 1.1 million viewers per episode. | am
grateful for the support we received from the industry in making
the series such a success in attracting new, in particular the young
and their parents, to reconsider a career in construction.

By allowing the general public to know more about the CIC as well
as the construction industry, we can ensure our dynamic expansion
and responsiveness to the needs of the Hong Kong society at large.
With this objective in mind, we opened in 2012 the Construction
Industry Resource Centre in Kowloon Bay for both industry and the
general public and to act as an education and recruitment hub.

Preparing for the Future

A highlight of 2012 was most definitely the grand opening of
the CIC’s landmark project, ZCB, Hong Kong’s first zero carbon
building, in Kowloon Bay. ZCB, developed by CIC in partnership
with the Government, is a showcase for state-of-the-art eco-
building design and technologies. It will serve as a platform for
the construction industry to share knowledge and expertise in
zero carbon building design and technologies, and help to raise
community awareness of sustainable living.

The Opening Ceremony on 26 June 2012 was officiated over by
the Financial Secretary Mr. John TSANG, and attended by many
distinguished guests — including then-Secretary for Development
and current-Chief Secretary for Administration Mrs. Carrie LAM —
signalling far-reaching support from both the HKSAR Government
and industry stakeholders.

We are committed to promoting green and sustainable construction
and good practices in the industry, and ZCB is a pioneering and
inspiring project, not only for the construction industry, but for
Hong Kong in general. | foresee ZCB becoming a model to inspire
more zero carbon buildings in Hong Kong.
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To further engage the Hong Kong community at large, ZCB will
open to the public in January 2013. ZCB represents an exemplary
construction project that anyone can learn from and enjoy.

Providing efficient services for industry is also one of our
objectives. Our planned amalgamation of the CIC and Construction
Workers Registration Authority, effective from 1 January 2013,
will give Hong Kong a more effective, single statutory body for
the construction industry. This will clarify policies and industry
priorities, improve administrative and operational efficiencies, and
enable more effective deployment of industry resources.

Looking Ahead

Since the CIC was formed in 2007, we have been committed to the
strategic development of Hong Kong's construction industry and
to providing an effective communication platform for stakeholders
and government to realise the aspirations of the industry.

As the peak industry body, we must continue to build on our
flourishing initiatives to lead the construction industry to new
heights. To do so, we need the continuing support of everyone who
has contributed to our success to date — our employees, Members
of the Council, Committees, task forces, and, above all, our
industry stakeholders.

| welcome this opportunity to thank everyone for promoting the
robust and sustainable development of the Hong Kong construction
industry.

Ir LEE Shing-see, GBS, OBE, JP

Chairman,
Construction Industry Council
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT

HITHEBERE

From Reactive to Proactive,
the Road Ahead

The Construction Industry Council (CIC) enjoyed a tremendously
productive year in 2012, demonstrating the new stature achieved
by our energetic and growing organisation. In its first five years
of existence, the CIC sought to build up capacity to service Hong
Kong's construction industry in response to its requirements.

Now the CIC is positioned to be more proactive in its engagement
with stakeholders to ensure that the industry's voice is heard and
its needs are met, as well as driving the market transformation
within the construction industry.

Leading Industry Initiatives

| am especially delighted to report the official launch on 26
June 2012 of the CIC's signature zero carbon building project,
Z/CB. Through ZCB's pioneering example, the CIC is showcasing
the construction industry's low carbon emission designs and
technologies while raising awareness of sustainable living to the
community.

Thanks to the strong support from the Government, stakeholders and
the dedication of the project team, ZCB was completed in 18 months.
It covers a total area of 14,700 square metres of land, comprising a
three-storey zero carbon building, and a landscaped area.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT

Z/CB features a number of firsts for Hong Kong, including the first
zero carbon building in the territory, and the first building with
surplus renewable energy able to feed back into the electricity supply
grid. In addition, a series of passive strategies, including the cross-
ventilated layout and high-performance facade, are used to improve
energy conservation and reduce energy consumption by 20%.
Other systems such as high-volume-low-speed fans and desiccant
dehumidification help achieve another 25% of energy saving.

Apart from the advanced technologies, efforts were also made
to minimise material use and embodied energy through efficient
structural design and low carbon construction practices. Recycled
materials and sustainable timber were used as much as possible
during construction. Excavated soil during construction was used
as fill in the urban native woodland to reduce waste.

Overall, ZCB has been fitted out with more than 80 cutting-
edge environmental features. This project has achieved BEAM
Plus Platinum rating, the highest rating for excellence building
environmental performance in Hong Kong, and was awarded the
Grand Award (New Building) in the Green Building Awards 2012.
/CB has caught the imagination of local and international media
with wide coverage including on the Mainland and by NHK of
Japan, and CNN International.

Striving for Improvement

CIC worked diligently to deliver concrete achievements for the
benefit of the construction industry, and the general public through
its committees. Their work in 2012 covered many crucial areas for
the industry.

Safety is always the first priority on our agenda. The Committee on
Construction Site Safety released Guidelines on the Adoption of
the Pay for Safety Scheme, significant because they offer fair and
equitable terms for contracting parties in a construction project.
The guidelines advise parties who pay for construction works and
main contractors to be mindful of allocating sufficient attention and
resources to site safety matters.

This was just one of the seven safety-related publications of the CIC
in the year, which immediately became an invaluable resource for
the industry to improve site safety performance by adopting "pay-
for-safety" principles. To quickly respond to critical safety matters,
a number of Safety Alerts were issued for the first time in 2012,
aimed at informing frontline supervisors and workers directly.
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Security of payment has been a long standing issue for the industry
to address. In a measure of how seriously the CIC takes this issue,
a Report on Security of Payment Legislation to Improve Payment
Practices in the Construction Industry was swiftly endorsed by the
Committee on Subcontracting and submitted to the Government
for consideration of legislation to secure payments right along the
industry supply chain. Development Bureau has accepted our
recommendation that security of payment legislation be enacted.

The CIC recognises that research is essential to maintain our
competitive edge and perform better construction work. In July, the
Committee on Environment and Technology published a research
policy focusing on meeting the direct needs of the industry. The
new policy outlines how CIC supports research, whether initiated
by CIC or research institutes. The research policy encourages
academics to conduct more practical research to facilitate the
sustainable growth and development of the whole industry. Apart
from commissioning its own research to address the needs of the
industry, such as Research on Adhesion Technologies for External
Wall Tiles and Rendering completed in the year, we received an
overwhelming response of 52 applications following our funding
invitation in September 2012. Over HK$6 million was granted for
six proposed research projects.

The Committee was tasked to set out a framework of Key
Performance Indicators (KPI) for measuring the performance of the
construction industry and, based on it, the KPI for the years 2001
— 2011 will be published in 2013.

The year 2012 was especially eventful for the Committee on
Procurement in light of Hong Kong's first Competition Ordinance
enacted last June. The Committee Chairman and a member of
the Task Force on Competition Law prepared a paper titled Hong
Kong's New Competition Law: An Introduction to offer an overview
of the ordinance and identify implications for the construction
industry.

The Committee convened a Task Force on Employer-Procured
Insurance Policies in Construction Contracts to review the
applicability of such insurance policies in local construction
contracts. The Committee also undertook drafting a Frequently
Asked Questions publication on NEC3 Collaborative Contracts.

The CIC also sought to enhance the Voluntary Subcontractor
Registration Scheme (VSRS) which will be officially renamed the
Subcontractor Registration Scheme (SRS), effective from 1 January
2013. Apart from gaining a direct affiliation with the CIC, more
than 4,000 subcontractors registered under the scheme will enjoy
enhanced recognition and visibility as an active partner in industry
reforms.
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Manpower and Training

Manpower and training took centre stage in 2012 and we
committed additional resources to further enhance greater diversity
in training and trade testing and maximise training capacity.

Working collaboratively with our stakeholders we were able
to realise flexible solutions to fulfil ever changing labour force
demands through an increasing diverse range of courses available
through the Enhanced Construction Manpower Training Scheme
(ECMTS), where we were able to increase capacity by more than
90% to 2,300, and the Contractor Cooperative Training Scheme
(CCTS). As of the end of 2012, the ECMTS trained a total of 2,333
people in short courses, resulting in 1,584 graduates to date.

Similarly, the Contractor Cooperative Training Scheme (CCTS)
witnessed healthy turnover. By the end of 2012, 293 people
took up training, with 161 already graduating. Considering that
approximately 80% of CCTS trainees are between 20 and 44 years
old, our industry's future looks bright.

In addition to increasing the number of new local hires, we are also
actively trying to improve diversity in our ranks, and the working
conditions for ethnic minorities. One initiative in 2012 was a
vocational Cantonese course for ethnic minority groups to enable
them to communicate with their colleagues on site which should
prove beneficial in increasing productivity and site safety.

Other outreach included a Construction Industry Resource Centre
Fair on 12 August drawing more than 300 people; a first-of-its-kind
job fair on 26 August targeting ethnic minorities that brought more
than 260 attendees; and a job fair held on 3 November supported
by eight companies and eliciting 230 applications.

In 2012, we offered two new skill enhancement courses to meet
the evolving manpower demands of the industry — an Appreciation
Course on Conservation of Built Heritage (Brick Wall, Plastering
and Tiles), and the Technically Competent Persons T1 (Minor
Works) Training Course, targeting supervisors.

Other new courses, including the Measurement Technician
Assistant Course and the AutoCAD Drafting Course, have all proven
popular.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT
HATHRE RS

Reaching Out

As we celebrate our fifth anniversary it is important to ensure our
message is reaching our community.

Developing strong media relationships is an important and effective
way for us to reach both the industry and the general public on
key issues such as safety, environment, recruitment and training.
Throughout the year we organised press conferences, and received
interviews from local and international media. Our attention-
grabbing advertisements affixed to trams and dozens of bus
shelters across Hong Kong gained tens of thousands of onlookers
daily. We now have both external and internal newsletters to keep
both our stakeholders and our staff up-to-date on CIC's work.

To maintain closer ties with those specified bodies in the CIC
Ordinance, we have regular dialogue with them through visits,
presentations, and informal discussions. We are also engaged on
an ongoing basis introducing the Council to trade and commerce
associations as well as receiving overseas delegations such as
delegates from the Mainland and Singapore in 2012. By meeting
face-to-face with these stakeholders, the CIC enhances its
communications and promotes goodwill.

In 2012, we organised regular seminars and technical forums
in addition to the annual CIC Conference which was held in
September, under the title Manpower Sustainability of Construction
Industry cum Zero Carbon Building Development in Hong Kong,
and attracted more than 200 distinguished guests and participants.
We also recognised excellence in the industry through various
award ceremonies and further deepened ties with our colleagues
through a variety of family fun and sports days. A comprehensive
list of our activities in 2012 may be found under the Events
Calendar in this report.

To ensure important messages reach frontline supervisors and
workers directly we started publishing posters in 2012 relating to
health, safety and welfare issues, such as Proper Protection and
Storage of Steel Bars, Protect Your Payment Rights, Say ‘No’ to
Overloading of Dump Trucks, and Say ‘Yes’ to Cleaner Environment
by Proper Transportation of Construction Waste. These posters not
only demonstrate the CIC’s concern in these critical matters, they
also serve to keep our efforts high in the public’s consciousness.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT

Corporate Governance

Integrity and transparency are crucial for us maintaining our
good reputation. The CIC Corporate Governance Framework is
based on standards of behaviour, organisational structure and
business processes, risk management and control, reporting and
communications, and corporate citizenship. We updated the C/IC
Corporate Governance Manual, making evident to all stakeholders
that we uphold the best quality services with the highest ethical
standards.

We also take serious our corporate social responsibilities. CIC
colleagues embarked on a multitude of charitable activities, from
blood donation events with the Hong Kong Red Cross to The
Community Chest's 2011-12 Corporate and Employee Contribution
Programme, raising $139,630. In recognition of the CIC's humane
efforts throughout the past years, we were again named a "Caring
Organisation" by the Hong Kong Council of Social Service.

This year our Annual Report for the first time features a
Sustainability Report, highlighting practical measures we have
taken and is further evidence of our commitment to sustainable
practices at all levels of our organisation.

Outlook for 2013

In our first five years we needed to build up and strengthen our
organisation. Now our attention needs to be more focused on
taking a proactive role in effectively representing the industry and
implementing reforms where necessary as well as continue to
communicate to the community at large the important role the
construction industry plays in Hong Kong.

In closing, | would like to extend my gratitude to our Chairman,
Council members, our colleagues, and industry stakeholders.
By working together we have maintained and strengthened our
relationships with every sector of Hong Kong's vast and talented
construction industry. Our successful record in 2012 leads me to
believe that 2013 could be the CIC's best one yet.

Ir TO Wing, Christopher

Executive Director,
Construction Industry Council
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Chairman, Construction
Industry Council
BEERESERE

Ir LEE Shing-see
ZEAT TEE
Chairman, Committee on Administration and Finance

TRROBESSERE

Mr. CHEUNG Hau-wai
SREB JTE

Chairman, Committee on Construction Site Safety
IHZR2EEEEE

MEMBERSHIP OF CIC
2ENE

Ir CHAN Siu-hung
BRAG1E TAZED

Ms. CHENG Yeuk-wah, Teresa
EESE 2+
Convenor, Objections Committee

BERHEEZEEETREA

Ir CHEW Tai-chong
FAXRE TIZEm
Chairman, Committee on Procurement

FEZEETRE

Mr. CHONG Kin-lit, Paul
HEERRU B

ppege-—s-——FEFg 1/
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MEMBERSHIP OF CIC
n?i% =] ﬁkﬁ

Mr. CHOW Luen-kiu Mr. KWAN Yuk-choi, James Prof. LEUNG Kin-ying, Christopher
BB S BMEM & RERRE B

Sr WONG Bay Mr. WONG Chik-wing, Mike Mr. YU Wai-wai
=L B2 A =iEE Kt RERE k&
Chairman, Committee on Subcontracting Chairman, Committee on Environment
IRSHEEESERE and Technology
BERBENESEEE
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Mr. MAK Tak-ching
HEIE

Mr. NG San-wa, Lawrence
LETEE £

Ir WAI Chi-sing
EERK TI2AM
Permanent Secretary for Development (Works)

BREBEINER (TH)

Ms. FUNG Yin-suen, Ada
BEE 24

Representing Permanent Secretary for Transport
and Housing (Housing)
KEXEBDREERZEWER (BE)

MEMBERSHIP OF CIC
n?rf, =] EKE

Ir Kevin POOLE
&R Ti2Mm

Mr. AU Choi-kai
BEE KL

Director of Buildings
BEFEER

BEXZRE T _FEFH
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MEMBERSHIP OF CIC

R E

New

Members
KB

(From 1 February 2013)
(FA2013F2 A 1HiE)

Ir CHAN Sau-kit, Allan Mr. CHAN Yiu-tung, Anthony = Ir Prof. CHU Pui-kwan, Reuben
FRISZN TH2AM PRIESR St Fom R HUR TIZAD

Retired

Members
HEKE

(Up to 31 January 2013)
(FZE20131H318)

Ir Dr. CHAN Ka-ching, Andrew Ir HO On-sing, Thomas Prof. KO Jan-ming
PR3 1E 1 Ti2AM ] 25 TA2EM =B B
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MEMBERSHIP OF CIC
n?rﬁ =] ﬁkﬁ

Mr. LAl Chi-wah Mr. LAM Ping-hong, Robert Ir PANG Yat-bond, Derrick Prof. WONG Sze-chun
RELE T4 MRER o4 Z—FH T2 E#E 2R

Mr. LAM Wo-hei Mr. WAN Koon-sun Ir WONG Tin-cheung, Conrad Ir WONG Wing-hoo, Billy
AR K SR S R TIZAM FoKkoE TIZAM

BEYEE_T - _EEFR
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COUNCIL PROFILE

EA-{M)

About the Construction Industry Council

The Construction Industry Council (CIC) was formed on
1 February 2007 under the Construction Industry Council
Ordinance (Cap. 587). The CIC consists of a chairman and 24
members representing various sectors of the industry including
employers, professionals, academics, contractors, workers,
independent persons and Government officials.

The main functions of the CIC are to forge consensus on long-
term strategic issues, convey the industry’s needs and aspirations
to Government, as well as provide a communication channel for
Government to solicit advice on all construction-related matters.

To learn more about the CIC, please visit www.hkcic.org

Under Section 5 of the Construction Industry
Council Ordinance, the CIC has the following
functions:

1. to advise and make recommendations to the Government on
strategic matters, major policies and legislative proposals, that
may affect or are connected with the construction industry,
and on matters of concern to the construction industry;

2.  toreflect to the Government the construction industry’s needs
and aspirations;

3. 1o elevate the quality and competitiveness of the construction
industry by promoting the ongoing development and
improvement of the industry;

4.  to uphold professionalism and integrity within the construction
industry by promoting self-regulation, formulating codes of
conduct and enforcing such codes;

5. to improve the performance of persons connected with the
construction industry through establishing or administering
registration schemes or rating schemes;

6. 1o advance the skills of personnel in the construction industry
through planning, promotion, supervision, provision or
coordination of training courses or programmes;

7. to encourage research activities and the use of innovative

techniques and to establish or promote the establishment of
standards for the construction industry;
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10.

11.

12.

13.

to promote good practices in the construction industry in
relation to dispute resolution, environmental protection,
multi-layer subcontracting, occupational safety and health,
procurement methods, project management and supervision,
sustainable construction and other areas conducive to
improving construction quality;

to enhance the cohesiveness of the construction industry by
promoting harmonious labour relations and the observance
of statutory requirements relating to employment, and by
facilitating communication among various sectors of the
industry;

to serve as a resource centre for the sharing of knowledge
and experience within the construction industry;

to assess improvements made by the construction industry
through the compilation of performance indicators;

to make recommendations with respect to the rate of the levy
imposed under this Ordinance;

to perform any other functions relevant to the construction
industry, including those functions conferred or imposed on it
by or under this Ordinance or any other enactment.

Under Section 6 of the Construction Industry
Council Ordinance, the supplementary
functions of the CIC are:

to provide training courses for the construction industry;

to establish and maintain industrial training centres for the
construction industry;

to assist, including by the provision of financial assistance,
in the placement of persons who have completed training
courses provided for the construction industry;

to assess the standards of skills achieved by any person
in any kind of work involving or in connection with the
construction industry, to conduct examinations and tests, to
issue or award certificates of attendance or competence, and
to establish the standards to be achieved in respect of any
such work;

where it is appointed under the Construction Workers
Registration Ordinance (Cap 583) as the Registrar of
Construction Workers under that Ordinance, to perform the
functions conferred or imposed on the Registrar by or under
that Ordinance or any other enactment.

10.

11.

12.

13.
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THE CUUNCIL AND ITS COMMITTEES
ET;EE

Committee on
Administration and Finance (Com-ANF)

TRRUBEES

Committee on
Construction Site Safety (Com-CSS)

THhZ2EES

Committee on
Environment and Technology

(Com-ENT)
CONSTRUCTION BERRNESS

INDUSTRY COUNCIL
EFEE 4

Committee on
Procurement (Com-PCM)

RBZESE

Committee on
Subcontracting (Com-SBC)

TRAHEES

Objections Committee (Com-0B)J)
BRERUEEZEES

Construction Industry Training Board

(CITB)
REXIIREES

Committee on
Manpower Training and Development

(Com-MTD)
ANBIRBREES

Hong Kong Green Building Council
EBREEERTY

Zero Carbon Building Limited
(provisional)

TR ARAE (ERE)
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THE COUNCIL AND ITS COMMITTEES
RENEBEIZES

Task Group on Implementation of
Heat Stress Action Plan
HET2RTBHHROIE)E

Task Group on Safety and Health of Workers
Engaging in Renovation Works on Occupied
Commercial Premises
REEBTFAR ST TN TARS EEHE
TiEva

Task Group on Site Safety of
Working in Lift Shaft
FHER HHE T Emy TR 2 THE/ME

Task Group on the Selection of Consultants
EpEEER AR TIEVE

Task Group on the Selection of Contractors
TR AR TR/ VE

Task Group on NEC3 Collaborative Contracts
MIREARE=RI(ENE
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ORGANISATION CHART
AERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
HITRE

DIRECTOR #& EE DIRECTOR #8E5
Training & Development LCB
BFIRERE E2EN:

Mr. WONG Doon-yee, Charles Dr. LI Gui-yi
\mAR STHE FEX HL
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SENIOR MANAGER
SRR
Development &

Support Services
BRETE

Board Services
ZEEEH

Development &
Support Services
B R ERS

Resource Centre
AL

SENIOR MANAGER
EREE

Construction
Trade Testing
EEETERI

Trainees
Recruitment &
Career Support

Z2ERER
MEEHE

Construction
Trade Testing
(Aberdeen Centre)
BEFETEAIR
(BBFHL)

Workers Registration
T Az

Management &
Safety Training
Centre
BEREZE
b= [ WY
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SENIOR MANAGER
SRR
Construction
Training
IS RIS

Kowloon Bay Centre
NEEEH L

Kwai Chung Centre
R

Sheung Shui Centre
B GV

Council Services
HEEG

Public Relations &
Fund Raising
AERES
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Ir TO Wing, Christopher
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Commitment to Corporate Governance

The CIC corporate governance system framework aims at:

1. Contributing to the effective performance of the roles and
functions of the CIC;

2. Serving to maintain the trust placed on the CIC by the public
regarding the use and stewardship of levies collected and
other assets which the CIC is entrusted; and

3.  Enhancing stakeholders’ confidence that the CIC upholds the
best quality with the highest ethical standards.

The governance structure is based on the Construction Industry
Council Ordinance (Cap. 587). The construction industry-wide
representation in the Construction Industry Council, the statutory
board, and Council-delegated committees provide strategic
guidance and leadership to the management of the CIC as well as
monitor organisational and managerial performance.

The CIC’s corporate governance system is built on five
cornerstones, namely Standard of Behaviour, Organisation
Structure and Business Processes, Risk Management and Control,
Reporting and Communications, and Corporate Citizenship.

Governance

The governance of the CIC is monitored by the Members of the
Council. The Council consists of a chairman and 24 members
representing various sectors of the industry including employers,
professionals, contractors, subcontractors, materials or equipment
suppliers, training institutes, academic institutions, trade unions,
independent persons and Government officials. The chairman and
the members are appointed by the Secretary for Development.
An appointed member holds office for a period not exceeding
three years as determined by the Secretary for Development. An
appointed member is eligible for reappointment on the expiry of
his/her term of office, but he/she may not serve as such a member
continuously for more than six years.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

-IL\ IM\Aﬁﬂ:

The Council convened six meetings in 2012. Meeting attendance

of the members in the Council and Committees was as follows:

Council Members

REHE

Council

E -

Ir LEE Shing-see, AL TA2AD 6/6
GBS, OBE, JP (Chairman) GBS * OBE ' JP
(£/%)
Mr. AU Choi-kai BEE KE 6/6
Ir Dr. CHAN Ka-ching, Andrew FREZIE - TH2AD 5/6
Ir CHAN Siu-hung FRAATE TAZAM 5/6
Mr. Duncan Warren PESCODA faEm &N 6/6
Ms. CHENG Yeuk-wah, Teresa BRE 4+ 2/6
Mr. CHEUNG Hau-wai RER A 5/6
Ir CHEW Tai-chong EXE T2h 3/6
Mr. CHONG Kin-lit, Paul TR A 6/6
Mr. CHOW Luen-kiu 55 St 3/6
Ir HO On-sing, Thomas A% TI2Am 5/6
Prof. KO Jan-ming 2EHR R 6/6
Mr. KWAN Yuk-choi, James MEM T4t 2/6
Mr. LAM Wo-hei AR 4 6/6
Prof. LEUNG Kin-ying, RENER HIR 6/6
Christopher
Mr. MAK Tak-ching BEE Ak 5/6
Mr. NG San-wa, Lawrence h¥E L4 6/6
Ir Kevin POOLE &R LI2AD 5/6
Ir WAI Chi-sing EEK 2R 4/6
Mr. WAN Koon-sun BT A 3/6
Sr WONG Bay =W A =<1 ] 6/6
Ir WONG Wing-hoo, Billy =K TI2AM 4/6
Ir WONG Tin-cheung, Conrad BAH TI2AD 5/6
Mr. WONG Chik-wing, Mike BEK KL 4/6
Mr. YU Wai-wai RER KL 3/6
* Due to change of membership of some members on 1 February

2012, certain members started joining the Committee during the

midst of the year.

A Member’s designated representative(s) attended meetings on his

behalf.

# Member quitted the committee during the year.
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Meeting Attendance

Committees
ZE®

9/9 N/A N/A N/A

N/A 3/4 5/5 N/A
N/A N/A 5/5 214
5/9 N/A 2/5 214
N/A N/A 5/5 4/4
N/A N/A N/A N/A
N/A 4/4 1/5 N/A
N/A 1/4 N/A 4/4
N/A N/A N/A 4/4
N/A 2/4 N/A N/A
N/A 0/4 N/A 3/4
N/A 3/4 4/5 N/A
N/A 2/4 1/5 N/A
N/A N/A 1/5 3/4
N/A N/A 4/4*  N/A

N/A N/A N/A N/A
N/A 3/4 N/A N/A
N/A N/A 3/4*  3/4
6/9 N/A N/A N/A
N/A 3/4 N/A N/A
N/A N/A N/A N/A
8/9 N/A N/A N/A
N/A N/A /17 N/A
N/A 1/4 N/A N/A
6/9 N/A 4/5 N/A

REH e

SBC
IR
2

N/A

N/A
N/A
N/A
5/5
2/5
4/5
N/A
4/4*
4/5
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A

N/A
4/5
N/A
N/A
N/A
2/4*
N/A
3/5
5/5
1/5

e

MTD
A%
AR
BR

N/A

N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
0/4
N/A
3/4
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
3/4

N/A
4/4
N/A
N/A
3/4
4/4
4/4
2/4
3/4
N/A
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Meeting attendance of members of the Construction Industry TRAREFIIREZEGHKERAFHHFEL

Training Board (CITB) was as follows: £ -
Members Meeting Attendance Members Meeting Attendance
RE e A2 8% K& H FE A2 8%
Ir WONG Wing-hoo, Billy (Chairman)  4/4 Mr. LI Chi-leung 4/4N
=AM TI2AD (F/%) S Y s
Mr. CHOI Wun-hing, Donald 3/4 Dr. LO Kin-ki, Edmond# 2/3
BB S BRE ET4
Mr. CHOW Luen-kiu 3/4 Dr. FUNG King-keung# 1/1
[EEEE ST IR L #
Ir HO Ngai-leung, Albert 3/4 Mr. LOK Kwei-sang, Tandy 4/4
A3k R TI2AD BREAE 4
Ir KWAN Po-jen, Helen 3/4 Ir SYNN Raymond-cheung 4/4
B TIZA HEIKFR LIZAD
Sr LAl Yuk-fai, Stephen 1/4 Mr. TSE Chun-yuen 4/4
FESBIE RIEAD ARIR So
Ir LAM Tin-sing, Enoch 4/4N Mr. TSE Lai-leung, Jimmy  1/4
MRE T2 HER F£4E

# Dr. LO Kin-ki, Edmond retired as a CITB member and was # EEELTIEE  EREFIIREZEGNE

succeeded by Dr. FUNG King-keung. 1_L§Eiﬂ/%i_§§ﬁti@{£ °
A Member's designated representative(s) attended certain meetingson ~ »  HKEZRARTE
his behalf.
Meeting Proceedings BRERE

The Council, board and committee meetings are scheduled atthe FEERESZESEZMNREERNFIIELERM
beginning of the year to facilitate members to reserve time for their EEXEX BERBRELE Z2EZRAXMTR
attendance. Meeting notices are issued to the members at leasttwo EHETELWERIASKEEE - LIEFRIB
weeks before the meeting. Members are provided with information 2 T - %}i,\E;\.ﬁ%ﬁT AEekEZEEERE
on the agenda items one week before the meeting under normal ~ BIARBAE K} °

circumstances.

Members are required to declare any conflict of interest before TEFIIAF im A BEZIZIEE Al - BB MUERIRE
discussion on the concerned agenda items commence. The (U RIBERY A= &R o (ER] R MAME MOTERITT
declaration and the actions taken such as the concerned member &) - FIZIER BB B2 HEmAEHIER S -
refraining from participating in the discussion of the item will be HREHAESFLEF - EF L FLELERED
documented in the minutes for record. Meeting attendance and @Eﬂﬁﬁé\.%iﬂﬁ“‘ﬁ? WAt e BuLEE (G
proceedings are documented in minutes which are posted on the EEAFIEZEIBM TREMBKEZES - ULE
CIC website (except those of the closed door Sessions of Council, IER¥EEZEEMNERLERIN) ©

the Committee on Administration and Finance, and the Objections

Committee).
For membership, terms of reference and report of each committee FERSZESMNERE - BMENHE - F2
and board, please refer to the section “Committee Reports”. BIZEaHRE] 59 -

BEXZRE T _—FEFR
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Briefing for New Members

Five members retired from the Council and five new members
joined from 1 February 2012 accordingly. A briefing session was
held by senior management to familiarise the new members about
the structure of the CIC, meeting proceedings and the Code of
Conduct for members.

Interaction with Management

The Chairman of the CIC leads the organisation to establish
collaborative relationships among stakeholders and the
Government. Under his leadership, the CIC promotes its roles and
functions to raise public awareness of the construction industry
and pursue excellence in the industry. The Executive Director is
a non-public officer, and is responsible for the entire operations
under the CIC remit, and executes the strategies set by the Council,
the Board and Committees.

The Chairman of the CIC puts a strong emphasis on effective
communications with management under an open and robust
environment. Bi-monthly meetings were held with senior
management to resolve issues and update progress of various
initiatives executed according to direction from the Council,
the Board and Committees. In addition the CIC established
the Strategic Planning Steering Committee (SPSC) which was
represented by the Chairman of the CIC, the Chairmen of the
Board and Committees, the Permanent Secretary for Development
(Works) and the Executive Director of the CIC. The SPSC strives
for enhancing concerted strategies among the Committees and
advises the Council on strategic affairs. Three meetings were
convened during the year.

Standard of Behaviour

The CIC has specific Codes of Conduct for members and its staff
which they are expected to adhere to when discharging their
responsibilities. New members and staff should acknowledge their
Code of Conduct. In addition, management is required to submit
biennial declaration on compliance with the Code.

Keeping staff up-to-date on legislative requirements is essential.
During the year, the CIC invited various authorities to hold training
for staff. These included the Corruption Prevention Department
(the CPD) of the Independent Commission Against Corruption
(ICAC) to explain the provisions and points to note of the
Prevention of Bribery Ordinance (Cap. 201) for the new hire; the
Equal Opportunities Commission discussed the Discrimination
Ordinances for staff frequently serving and interacting with the
public; and the Office of the Privacy Commissioner for Personal
Data, Hong Kong, advised front-line staff who handle personal data
collected from the public.
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Organisation Structure and Business
Processes

Effectiveness of the business processes is measured in terms
of proper checks and balances as well as effective delivery of
performances as governed by the policies and procedures.
Management is accountable to build and monitor the internal
control system.

Sustainable organisational growth could only be achieved by the
continuous development of our staff and thus the CIC established
the structured training and development programme covering
management skills, language skills, customer services and project
management for the staff’s continuous learning. The CIC continued
to automate processes aiming at a paperless environment and
seamless work flow among departments which in turn would
benefit the public who receive services from the CIC.

Risk Management and Control

The risk-based audit approach was being adopted to review those
areas that were relatively more significant to senior management so
as to assure the compliance with the policies and procedures laid
down as well as risk mitigation being in place.

The Internal Audit Team undertook the following key projects in
2012:

1. Executing internal audit projects to review compliance with
the laid down policies and procedures as well as business
process effectiveness and efficiency. Areas of review included
financial statement closing process, budget setting and
control process and high-level health check on governance
and human resources management;

2. Performing due diligence review on the amalgamation
process of the CIC and the then Construction Workers
Registration Authority (CWRA) as well as financial information
and risk assessment on CWRA; and

3.  Reviewing reported cases concerning suspected violations to
the CIC policies and procedures and suggesting improvement
measures.
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Further to the internal audit work, the CIC continues to seek
assistance from the ICAC to enhance the business processes
which may be vulnerable to possible corruption. In 2012, the ICAC
commenced a study to review the procurement procedures of
the CIC to ensure that the process was robust to contribute to a
corruption-free procurement environment.

The external auditors independently carry out the statutory audits
and no other non-audit work had been engaged during the year.

Reporting and Communication
CIC Publications

The CIC kept the industry and public informed about its pursuits
and industry development. Four Newsletters were published and
distributed to 104 organisations and parties including Government
departments, universities, members of the Legislative Council,
chambers and associations. In addition, the CIC had 1,100
e-subscribers to its Newsletter which were also free for download
from the CIC website.

In order to let the industry know in real time the initiatives
undertaken by the CIC, a bi-monthly CIC Snapshots (combining the
previous bi-monthly CIC training academy report) was launched
in the year. Three issues were published during the year. The CIC
Snapshots summarises work in progress of the CIC to facilitate the
stakeholders to participate in the discussions they deemed fit and
to raise to the CIC their concerns and suggestions along the way.

Stakeholder Engagement

The CIC proactively outreached to stakeholders to exchange
ideas in numerous formal and topical meetings with trade unions,
contractors, subcontractors and associations such as the Hong
Kong Institute of Surveyors, the Hong Kong Institution of Engineers,
the Hong Kong Construction Association, the Hong Kong
Construction Subcontractors Association, to talk about the CIC's
various training schemes and programmes.

Social Media

The CIC stepped up its efforts to reach all walks of life especially
the young. Five Facebook accounts on specific themes - CIC
corporate wide, CIC Construction Industry Resource Centre,
CIC Training Courses and Trade Test, CIC ZCB and Construction
JobsNet - were set up. Social media can serve as an interactive
platform to exchange ideas and share information with the public.
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International Exchanges

The following exchanges with construction industry professionals
from outside Hong Kong were conducted during the year:

1. Guests from Professional Exchange Programme of Hainan
Province Official Delegation, Hainan Province, organised by
the PEAK of the Vocational Training Council;

2. Guests from the Technical Institute of Guangdong Province;
3. A heritage expert delegation from Beijing;

4. CEO and delegates of Building and Construction Authority
and delegates from Ministry of National Development,
Singapore; and

5. CIC's participation in the 2012 Mainland and Hong Kong
Construction Industry Forum Sustainable Urban Form: City
Land Use and Town Planning in Chongging

Reporting

Various reports and statistics were published on the CIC website as
public information.

Internal Communications

The CIC values its staff and internal communication is regarded
as important as external. A new staff newsletter, CIC Insight, was
issued in the year. The Human Resources Department set up a
designated email and telephone lines to receive enquiries and
suggestions from staff. Responses were followed up and tracked.

Management regularly visited CIC premises and met with staff to
exchange views on various operational matters. Regular meetings
with the two unions were held by management. Corporate news
is also released to all staff through the CIC intranet and email to
ensure that messages reach staff at the various locations.
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

TEHESRE

The CIC is committed to being a good corporate citizen. CIC staff
and trainees participated in various events related to corporate
social responsibility in three main areas in 2012:

BERARRHEELAR HGEIMEBEEHR
0122 SR EMEM & R EHEMAE
BEEDR=(ER :

»

1. Contributed to charitable organisations by participating in 1. Z2HEZESHEELRRNEE K5 Q5

various programs as follows:

Charitable Organisations

HEME

\

Events

EE

Community Chest of Hong Kong
EDC YNk

Hong Kong Red Cross
BALtTTE

Medecins Sans Frontieres (MSF)
4 [ SR B

Oxfam Hong Kong
Liee

ORBIS Hong Kong
EEBL AT

Hong Kong and Kowloon Walk for Millions
B WERAETT

Skip Lunch Day

Rmi1E (7] RAE

Green Day

NS A=

Charity Mooncake Sale

N APFEHIK

Love Teeth Day

N

Sponsoring the Hong Kong Red Cross Headquarters
Redevelopment Project 2012/13

BBh2012 Z 2013 F B BAL T FEINAEH NESTZTE
Blood Donation

B

Pass-it-On

BUOAEXNTE

MSF Day
EEREAH

Oxfam Rice Sale
IEKBE

World Sight Day
HRRER
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2.  Contributed to society with voluntary work and by hiring less
privileged people. During the year, the CIC engaged the letter-
shopping (bulk mail packing of promotional material and
invitations) services provided by Fu Hong Society Supported
Employment Service. CIC staff and trainees supported the
Hong Kong Dragon Boat Association in the Hong Kong
International Dragon Boat Festival as volunteers.

3. Contributed to the environment by recycling paper, plastic,
printer toner and ink cartridges. Green procurement practices
were adopted to source recycled paper and air-conditioners
with energy saving labels. In 2012 the CIC, as one of the
pioneers in Hong Kong, deployed electric vehicles. These
vehicles, fully powered by electricity, could achieve “zero
emission”. The CIC also participated in the IAQ Certification
Scheme launched by the Environmental Protection
Department to check the indoor air quality of CIC offices
aiming to improve the working environment.

Recognising CIC’'s commitment to waste reduction and recycling
during the year, the Council was awarded “Friends of EcoPark”
status in addition to being named a “Caring Organisation” by the
Hong Kong Council of Social Services.

TRASEE

BRSBEAL 2EFBEIHE EBE
g e S%QE%W%FHTT%F?’\%EM%%k
WO EE (EEMBMBFEFHE
BHENEE) RS - E%E\E’JE\I%DEE\EE
NEIHEDEEEEREABREEES
BRABE -

VAEAR ~ 2B~ FTENM RN A2 RS2
ﬁ%% E%QEET&%@%%WW%%%HE
BH=H - BIHECHEE - B #g
Hx2mENRESHESEL 2012 F/A
R BEIEEE [THR] - KAZEBLHER
2 BEEZ2MNTHRRREBHETH
ENTER/EXRRTENE  REFEHLE
ANRZERES @ WETIEIRE °

Iﬁﬁlﬁ&iﬁi&ﬁ%%&ﬂﬁ%ﬁ%_ﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁ

e MEEFRALERGHETEE S [FRORE

\&J meE - EAR TRIREZR] -

BEXZRE T _FEFH

37



APEN A

AVAVAVINVL RSO

—

~ CREATING >

A BETTER
TOMORROW

e *

A

7

N — = '7

AN
<%

/

1

J

13
‘4

Y% 1A

7 T N 11 UL N

PO

Vil TANTANA ¥

-
S

N

i1

bl

-

i A-"i
e LK
s e G| e

o i
I8 / ‘ V)
iy | A
[ ot = %\

N

X

NARL L
AR
N |
NS

4

i
| ‘ |
{u
il
gl

AT

A ! A
rd
1 [



SUSTAINABILITY REPORT

We are pleased to present the Construction Industry Council’s
first Sustainability Report. The CIC has stepped up its efforts to
inform the public, especially the young, about the importance of
the construction industry in Hong Kong as well as to raise their
understanding of sustainability, what it means, and how it relates to
their lives.

Spreading the Message

Four “Build Up Mini Talents” were created to highlight safety and
diversity in the industry in terms of trades to choose from, ages,
and that there are opportunities for men and women. The figurines
were designed to project a professional image of construction
practitioners who are well equipped with their tools and wear
appropriate safety equipment. They have been recruited for various
publicity activities including at ZCB and the Construction Industry
Resource Centre.

From left to right:

Little Gingerly
Brother Build
Growie :
Mr. Construction :

A diligent safety officer

A smart leveller

An energetic electrical apprentice

An experienced confined space worker

The CIC, in collaboration with the Development Bureau, Radio
Television Hong Kong and TVB Jade, presented a 10-episode TV
documentary A Dream Comes True early in 2012. Different trades
were featured including, contractors, tower crane operator, bamboo
scaffolder, bar bender, formwork worker, safety officer, shotfirer and
engineer along with the experiences of female and ethnic minority
workers. It reached a wide audience and created greater interest in
the industry, especially among young people.
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SUSTAINABILITY REPORT
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In striving for excellence in the industry, the CIC regularly produces
good practice guidelines. These publications have been diversified
to suit the needs of different scenarios. Apart from the detailed
guidelines, alerts and posters with concise messages targeting
specific issues were issued.

Sustainable Construction

2012 was a remarkable year for the CIC with the completion of
two pioneering projects, the zero carbon building, ZCB, and the
Construction Industry Resource Centre, heralding a new era for low
carbon, green developments.

ZCB

/CB has become a landmark in Kowloon East. Apart from
showcasing the zero carbon concept and green technologies, ZCB
has provided an open communal green space for the public’s
enjoyment. With 220 native trees from more than 40 different
species and a diverse array of native shrubs, this is Hong Kong's
first urban native woodland which covers an area of about 2,000m?,
or 13% of the total ZCB site area.

Visitors to ZCB may learn about how to put “zero carbon” into
practice, such as:

Site and Orientation to improve cooling performance;

o Building Shape to reduce building energy intensity;

° Landscape Considerations to provide desirable shading during
summer and allow desirable solar gains during winter while

adding aesthetic appeal;

° Space Planning to reduce glare, improve comfort and reduce
cooling energy;

° Buffer Spaces such as double glaze facades and sunspaces
along the building perimeter to improve building energy
performance by widening the range of outdoor temperatures
in which thermal comfort can be maintained;

° Optimised Windows to reduce cooling loads;

° Solar Shading to reduce cooling loads and to improve glare;

° High Thermal Mass Materials to reduce energy use and peak
demand and to increase acoustic insulation and fire ratings;
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° Thermal Insulation to reduce cooling loads and to achieve
more stable interior surface temperatures; and

° Air and Moisture Tightness to improve building energy
performance and mitigates the risk of condensation and its
related negative effects.

ZCB announced in December 2012 the launch of ZCB’s
Ambassador Scheme to promote and raise the community’s
awareness of low carbon living. We are honoured to have
Mr. Paul CHAN, the Secretary for Development, as the
Commander of Ambassadors. Twelve leading advocates of
sustainable development and green buildings were invited to
be ZCB Honourary Ambassadors to share their experience with
the other ambassadors, and spread ZCB’s message. In addition,
we have recruited the first batch of more than 100 Professional
Ambassadors and Student Ambassadors to widen their exposure
on low and zero carbon building design and technologies and
low carbon living concepts so that in return they can share the
message in their social and business networks.

Construction Industry Resource Centre

The Construction Industry Resource Centre was set up to offer a
one-stop educational, promotional and information hub for the
Hong Kong construction industry including workers, craftsmen,
professionals, employers and job seekers. The “Green Construction
Zone” in the centre was designed to promote the green building
concept in Hong Kong. Ten green construction methods are
displayed.

The centre is itself a demonstration of green building design,
incorporating many energy saving features. A row of French
windows were installed as an external wall, allowing natural
daylight to penetrate to minimise energy consumption which in
turn reduces emission of carbon and greenhouse gas.

Impact on Environment

Green initiatives were sprouting up in every corner of the CIC.
The corporate souvenirs also turned “green”, with the new CIC
recycle bags made from GPET™ - 100% post-consumer recycled
PET bottles which are cleaned, crushed and transformed into bag
fabric.

This is just the beginning and many more green initiatives will be
pursued by the CIC and the construction industry in the years to
come in order to contribute to the sustainability of the industry and
the environment of Hong Kong.
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Committee on Administration and Finance

COUNCIL SERVIGES
S

TBRMBEEER

Membership List
(as of 31 December 2012)

Chairman
Ir LEE Shing-see

Members
CIC Members
1.  Ir CHAN Siu-hung

2. Ir WONG Wing-hoo, Billy
3. Mr. YU Wai-wai

4.  Permanent Secretary for Development (Works)

Terms of Reference

1.To advise CIC on staff matters, including recruitment, salary

and other conditions of service.

2.To advise CIC on general administration matters, including

accommodation and facilities.

3.To co-ordinate and prepare annual estimates of income and
expenditure and programme of activities for approval of CIC.

4.To recommend appropriate investments of surplus funds.

5.To advise CIC on other financial matters.

Committee Report

In the financial aspect, the total income of CIC for the year 2012
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was $574.99 million (2011: $432.95 million) representing an
increase of 32.8%. The total expenditure for the year 2012 was
$397.49 million (2011: $317.44 million) with an increase of 25.2%
annually. No impairment loss on available-for-sale investments was
reclassified from equity for the year 2012 (2011: $8.32 million).
The operating result for the year showed a surplus of $177.50
million (2011: $107.18 million).
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In 2012 there was $10.74 million gain in other comprehensive
income for the year. This $10.74 million represented a net increase
in fair value of the available-for-sale securities investments held at
the balance sheet date (2011: decrease of $1.18 million) which
was recognised in 2012 in accordance with the requirement of
the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards. Combining with
the 2012 surplus of $177.50 million (2011: $107.18 million), total
comprehensive income for 2012 amounted to $188.24 million
(2011: $106.01 million).

Construction levy amounted to $484.52 million in 2012 (2011:
$365.54 million), which accounted for about 84.3% of the total
income of the year, was the main source of income of the Council.
The increase of levy income by 32.5% from 2011 was mainly due
to more income received from building and civil engineering works
undertaken in the year 2012 particularly in private and public
sectors. Levies assessed on the value of the construction works
in private sector, public sector and others (others included port
and airport development, Mass Transit Railway, Express Rail Link,
South Island Line, Kwun Tong Line Extension, West Island Line
and Shatin / Central Line) were $222.98 million, $190.93 million
and $70.27 million respectively, representing 46.0%, 39.4%
and 14.5% of the total levy income for 2012. In addition, penalty
received on overdue levy was $0.34 million (0.1% of the total levy
income) for 2012.

The investment and interest income for 2012 was $10.53 million
as compared to $10.25 million for 2011. The slight increase
in income for 2012 was mainly due to higher interest earnings
(contributed by both principal and interest rate) from placing time
deposits in banks.

Course fees and related income, another major type of income for
the Council amounted to $26.79 million in 2012 (2011: $26.18
million). The trade testing income for 2012 was $5.68 million
(2011: $6.14 million). Increase in other income was mainly due to
reimbursement of trainees’ allowances from the Government (total
other income for 2012 was $47.46 million as compared to $24.84
million in 2011).

Total expenditure in 2012 was $397.49 million as compared to

$317.44 million in 2011, representing an increase of 25.2%. Major
items included:-
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Staff costs amounted to $216.92 million in 2012 as
compared to $188.60 million in 2011. The increase of 15.0%
was mainly due to salary increment effective from April 2012,
more staff employed to provide services for the enlarged
duties and functions of CIC, and full year effect of the new
and vacant posts filled from 2011 onwards.

Training expenses amounted to $77.75 million in 2012 (2011:
$47.56 million) representing an increase of 63.5%. The
increase was mainly due to the increase in trainee allowances
in respect of enhanced construction manpower training for
selected trades under the Government’s initiative of “Investing
in Construction Manpower” Scheme and for existing training
courses plus expenses for Contractor Cooperative Training
Scheme.

Workshop expenses increased by 20.3% and amounted to
$19.15 million in 2012 (2011: $15.92 million). The increase
was mainly due to the rise in the expenses for consumable
materials and tools used in the CIC training centres and
training grounds.

Advertising and publicity expenses amounted to $13.72
million in 2012 (2011: $8.95 million). The increase by 53.3%
in 2012 was mainly due to expenses incurred in Construction
Safety Week, and the media and advertising expenses for
recruiting of trainees and promotion of training schemes.

General and administrative expenses amounted to $49.23
million in 2012 (2011: $38.49 million). The 27.9%
increase in 2012 was mainly due to $5.13 million increase
in security and cleaning fees incurred for the increased
number of training grounds and the operations of ZCB and
the Construction Industry Resource Centre, $4.18 million
increase in the funding support for the operating activities of
the Hong Kong Green Building Council, $1.06 million more
research work carried out during the year, and $0.89 million
increase in printing expenses for more guidelines issued and
forms required for workers registration.

Capital commitments of $25.13 million in 2012 (2011:
$216.16 million) comprised of contracted capital expenditure
for the establishment and continued construction of the ZCB,
and renovation and design works at training centres and
training grounds.
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At the end of 2012, the Council held a total of $909.69 million as
its accumulated fund and reserves, compared to $721.44 million
in 2011. The Council continues to place most of the funds in time
deposits and bonds with licensed banks in Hong Kong, and invest
a limited sum in listed shares.

In accordance with the CIC Ordinance, the Council submitted
its annual report for the year ended 31 December 2011 to the
Secretary for Development in June 2012, together with the audited
financial statements for the same period and the auditor’s report
thereof. These were subsequently tabled at the Legislative Council.
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CIC’s Financial Results and Financial Position (Year ended 31 December)
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Income N
Expenditure X H
Impairment loss on available-for-sale REREF OB H

investments reclassified from equity HEBHFIEERE

Surplus for the year FER

Other comprehensive income for the year & EAb4R & URA

Net increase/(decrease) in fair value of ~ A[ftH&E ZIE R TFE
available-for-sale investments 8%/ (F18)

Reclassification adjustment for BV EERBE
impairment loss included ZEH OB
in profit or loss

Total comprehensive income for the year FEE4EE U A 4858

NET ASSETS FEE

2012 2011 2010
HK$m HK$m HK$m
BESHET BESEET ABESEETT
575.0 432.9 351.4
(397.5) (317.4) (259.9)
- (8.3) -
177.5 107.2 91.5
10.7 (9.5) (3.7)

- 83 -

10.7 (1.2) (3.7)
188.2 106.0 87.8
909.7 721.4 615.4
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CIC Revenue for the Years 2010 to 2012
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CIC Expenditure for the Years 2010 to 2012
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CIC Revenue, Expenditure & Surplus for the Years 2010 to 2012
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Committee on Construction Site Safety

Membership List
(as of 31 December 2012)

Chairman
Mr. CHEUNG Hau-wai

Members

CIC Members

Ir CHEW Tai-chong

Mr. CHOW Luen-kiu

Ir HO On-sing, Thomas
Prof. KO Jan-ming

Mr. KWAN Yuk-choi, James
Mr. NG San-wa, Lawrence
Mr. WAN Koon-sun

Mr. WONG Chik-wing, Mike

Director of Buildings

Co-opted Members

Ir James BLAKE*

Mr. CHAN Cho-sing, Joel
Authorised Person

Mr. FONG Hok-shing, Michael
Development Bureau

Ms. FUNG Yin-suen, Ada*

Mr. KWONG Chiu-ling, Victor*

Ir LAU Chi-kin*

Mr. LAM Wai-kuen, Dominic

The Hong Kong Federation of Insurers
Mr. LI Chi-leung*

Mr. TSANG Hing-cheung, Gilbert
The Hong Kong Federation of Electrical
and Mechanical Contractors

Mr. TSE Shek-hung, David
Hong Kong General Building Contractors Association
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Mr. WONG Wai-man
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*Chairman of Task Force / Working Group

CONSTRUCTION INDUSTRY COUNCIL ANNUAL REPORT 2012

THHEREEES

KERE

(R20124F 12 A318)

&
SRER SLE

K&
HEHKE
EAXR TI2AM
[ERE T4
a2 TA2ED
=EH X
BEM K4
th¥rsE k4
BEHT A
w=ER KA
EFEER

BHES
E{R%t Ti2RD*
RiE2 4
WA AL
JTEW
BRD

BEE XL+
2% TI2RD*
EHE Kt
BRREBEGE
FT g
BBMELIER

CEZ )i
BBRREEARER
BEE R
BEMBETAS
BEE Bt

BT 2T

CEHE N TR B



Terms of Reference

1.To review and monitor site safety performance of the
construction industry.

2.To identify and recommend measures for improving safety
performance to CIC.

3.To promote adoption of the improvement measures by the
industry.

Committee Report

Safety is of paramount importance to the construction industry
and it is also one of the key focuses of the Council. The Committee
on Construction Site Safety (Com-CSS) and its various task forces
devoted significant effort to improve construction safety and
accomplished a number of tasks in 2012.

The first was the Guidelines on Safety of Lift Shaft Works (Volume
2 — During Lift Installation Stage until Issue of Occupation Permit
and Handing Over to Developer). The Guidelines set out good
practices recommended by the CIC for enhancing work safety
of site personnel working near or inside a lift shaft during lift
installation stage until the issue of Occupation Permit (OP) and
handing over to the developer. After the issuance of the Guidelines,
two seminars were organised to introduce them to industry
stakeholders.

The Guidelines on the Adoption of the Pay for Safety Scheme (PFSS)
were also developed. The Guidelines encourage improvement in
site safety performance by adoption of “pay-for-safety” principles
in both public and private contracts. A press briefing session was
held in December 2012 to introduce the Guidelines to the industry
stakeholders and the public.

Three safety alerts were published in 2012. The first, Safety Alert
No. 001/12: Water Pipe Laying Works — Pressure Test (Road
Works), was completed by the Informal Task Force on Site Safety
Incidents. This alert aims at preventing accidents when workers lay
underground water pipes or carry out related construction works
that require excavation and pipe pressure tests.
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The second, Safety Alert No. 002/12: Safety Related Matters of
Workers Engaging in Renovation and Repair Works (with the use
of volatile organic compounds), was prepared by the Task Group
on Safety and Health of Workers Engaging in Renovation Works
on Occupied Commercial Premises under the Task Force on
Work Safety of Repair, Maintenance, Alterations and Additions
(RMAA) Sites. This alert aims at avoiding health hazards to workers
involving the use of volatile organic compounds during renovation
and repair work in commercial premises such as shopping malls
and office towers.

The third, Safety Alert No. 003/12: Prevention of Electrocution,
was developed by the Informal Task Force on Site Safety Incidents
to raise awareness among construction and electrical workers
to prevent electrical accidents as well as recommending safety
measures to be adopted by employers, contractors, electrical
workers and other construction workers. A technical seminar on
electrical works safety was held to provide participants with a better
understanding on electrical works safety and implementation of
good practices to enhance safety at construction sites.

In addition, two posters were initiated by the Task Force on Site
Housekeeping. The posters provided simple and clear messages
to industry stakeholders on good site housekeeping practices
for quick reference by both site management staff and frontline
workers. The two site housekeeping posters were Designated
Access for Pedestrian and Vehicle and Proper Protection and
Storage of Steel Bars.

The CIC also organised a Construction Safety Week in collaboration
with with the Development Bureau and the Hong Kong
Construction Association in May 2012. The five-day activities drew
enthusiastic support from more than 20 organisations, including
government departments, employers, professional bodies,
contractors, subcontractors and labour union. The key message of
Construction Safety Week was the promotion of “Zero Accident”.
The campaign generated a positive response from both the
industry and the general public.

The Com-CSS had a fruitful year in 2012, and will continue to

promulgate site safety culture and work hand-in-hand with industry
stakeholders to enhance site safety.
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The Hong Kong Construction Association
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Terms of Reference

1.To make recommendations on improving the environmental
friendliness of buildings and infrastructures including
measures for enhancing energy efficiency, improving
indoor environmental quality and minimising loading on the
environment.

2.To recommend good practices for improving the environmental
performance of construction contracts including measures
for abating environmental nuisances and reducing waste
generation.

3.To co-ordinate and promote construction research and
development and facilitate practical application of research
results by the construction industry.

4.To advise on the strategy for development of construction
standards.

5.To develop systems for assessing the performance of the
construction industry.

Committee Report

The Committee on Environment and Technology (Com-ENT)
completed a number of tasks and generated initiatives in
2012 covering the areas of enhancement to the environment,
construction technology and productivity, collaborative research
and gauging the performance of the construction industry.

To combat climate change through reduction of carbon emissions
is a global priority. The CIC continued to leverage on its partner
organisation, the Hong Kong Green Building Council which is
financially supported by the CIC, to devise green initiatives to
reduce the energy consumption of buildings. The CIC continued to
explore other means to reduce greenhouse gas emissions.

The Committee is to establish a framework for determining
the embodied carbon content of construction materials from
manufacturing sites to construction sites. Through the joint efforts
of the consultant commissioned and the Task Force on Carbon
Labelling Standard for Construction Materials, the study was
completed and the CIC will look into the implementation of the
carbon labelling framework in 2013.
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To minimise the dependence on river sand in the production of
concrete and cement mortar to protect the river environment, the
Committee conducted research on identifying possible alternatives.
The first phase of the study will be completed in early 2013, to
be followed by phase two to determine the specifications and
classifications of the river sand substitutes for the production of
concrete and cement mortar.

The Committee finalised the Research on Adhesion Technologies
for External Wall Tiles and Rendering. The research report will be
published in early 2013. The report contains useful information
for industry practitioners to make reference during the design,
construction and maintenance stages of external wall tiles.

The Working Group on Strategic Implementation of Prefabrication
and Modular Construction completed its review and summarised
the benefits of adopting prefabrication technology to increase the
productivity from the perspective of industry practitioners. In-depth
studies on a number of specific issues were recommended.

Throughout the year, the Committee set up a new task force and a
working group with members representing different stakeholders in
the construction industry to explore ways to enhance construction
productivity and efficiency. The Working Group on Roadmap for
Building Information Modelling (BIM) Implementation will prepare
a blueprint on the strategic implementation of the BIM throughout
the construction industry.

The Task Force on Schematic Design for Application for RFID,
GPS and Sensor Technology in Monitoring the Movement of
Construction Waste will look into how to use technology to improve
the movement of construction waste and to encourage project
owners to be proactively monitoring the dumping of construction
waste generated from their own sites.

To encourage more research which can benefit the local
construction industry, the CIC provides funding support for
research projects. The Committee set out a policy for research
institutes to apply for funding to support their proposed research
projects with practical value or benefits to the construction industry
at large.

An invitation to apply for funding was made in September 2012
with an overwhelming response of 52 applications. Over HK$6
million was granted to six proposed research projects. The exercise
will be conducted semi-annually with the next invitation to be made
in March 2013.

The Committee is tasked to set out a mechanism to gauge the
performance of the industry. The framework of Key Performance
Indicators (KPI) for measuring the performance of the construction
industry was developed and based on it, the KPI for the years
2001-2011 will be published soon.
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Committee on Procurement

Membership List
(as of 31 December 2012)

Chairman
Ir CHEW Tai-chong

Members

CIC Members

Ir Dr. CHAN Ka-ching, Andrew
Ir CHAN Siu-hung

Mr. CHONG Kin-lit, Paul

Ir HO On-sing, Thomas

Mr. LAM Wo-hei

Ir Kevin POOLE*

Permanent Secretary for Transport and Housing (Housing)

Co-opted Members

Mrs. Irene CHENG

Hong Kong Housing Authority
Mr. CHENG Kar-shing, Peter

Mr. Steve GRIFFIN*

Sr HO Kwok-kwan, Thomas
Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors
Mr. HO Sing-mo*

Mr. LO Kwok-wah, Kelvin
Development Bureau

Mr. MOK Wah-hoi
Independent Commission Against Corruption

Dr. Andrew SIMPSON*

*Chairman of Task Force / Working Group

Terms of Reference

1.To examine current practices on procurement in relation
to project planning, tendering, contract administration and
site supervision and recommend good practices to improve
the quality and cost effectiveness in delivery of construction
contracts.
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Committee Report

Working in collaboration with industry stakeholders, the Committee
on Procurement (Com-PCM) focused its effort in developing good
practices and presenting the industry views on the Competition Bill
in 2012.

The Contract Price Fluctuation System (CPFS) has the benefits
of providing a fair and equitable mechanism for sharing of price
risks in construction contracts, and thereby, helps to promote a
harmonious working relationship between contracting parties.
Following the publication of the Guidelines on Contract Price
Fluctuation System, the Task Force on CPFS organised a “Technical
Seminar on Contract Price Fluctuation System” in 2012 to
promulgate the guidelines and promote the use of CPFS in the
Hong Kong construction industry.

Taking the initiative of promoting the use of partnering and
collaborative work further, the Com-PCM set up a Task Force
on NEC3 Collaborative Contracts. The Task Force organised a
“Technical Forum on NEC3 Collaborative Contracts” in 2012 to
enhance industry stakeholders’ understanding of the NEC3 suite
of contracts. The Forum provided a useful and effective platform
for stakeholders to express views and exchange ideas on the
application of the NEC3 in Hong Kong. As the next step, the Task
Force will embark on drafting a frequently asked question (FAQ)
document on NEC3 Collaborative Contracts focusing on sharing
knowledge and experience on the practical application of NEC3 as
a form of collaborative contracts in Hong Kong.

Hong Kong's first cross-sector competition law, the Competition
Ordinance, was passed in June 2012. Shortly before the enactment
of the ordinance, the Task Force on Competition Law presented
the construction stakeholders’ views on the Competition Bill in
a submission to the Bills Committee of the Legislative Council.
In October 2012, the Executive Director of the CIC attended a
Conference on Competition Law to share views with the participants
on the Competition Ordinance and its potential implications for
the construction industry. A forum on the Competition Law is also
planned for 2013 to assist industry stakeholders, particularly the
small and medium-sized enterprises (SMEs), to understand the
broad aims and principles of the Competition Ordinance and the
simple steps to be taken to avoid infringement.

Meanwhile, the Task Force on the Selection of Consultants and
Contractors continued to deliberate on the principles, issues and
good practices in the selection of consultants and contractors
and to undertake drafting of the Guidelines on the Selection of
Consultants. A new Task Force on Employer-Procured Insurance
was also established in November 2012 to explore the applicability
of employer-procured insurance policies, also known as the owner-
controlled insurance programme, in local construction contracts.
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Committee on Subcontracting IRPHEES
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Terms of Reference

1.To operate and develop the Voluntary Subcontractor
Registration Scheme (VSRS).

2.To raise the professional standard of subcontractors through
providing training courses and other value-added services
under the VSRS and coordinating the training organised by
other organisations.

3.To examine current arrangements for selection and
management of subcontractors and recommend
improvements.

4.To promote use of written subcontracts.

5.To promote good practices relating to dispute resolution.

Committee Report

The Committee on Subcontracting (Com-SBC) continued to work
with industry stakeholders to ensure a healthy development and
continuous improvement of the subcontracting system in the
construction industry.

One of the key accomplishments of the committee was the
preparation of the Report on Security of Payment Legislation
to Improve Payment Practices in the Construction Industry.
The report, prepared by the Task Force on Security of Payment
Legislation, was drafted with reference to the results of a survey
conducted by the Development Bureau in collaboration with the
task force to ascertain the magnitude of the payment problems
in the construction industry and to seek stakeholders’ views on
possible measures to improve payment practices.

In the report, the CIC reflected the consensus of the industry
to put in place legislation in parallel with the implementation of
interim administrative measures to improve the cash flow along
the construction supply chain. The report was completed in
August 2012 and submitted to the Development Bureau, which
recommended that proper resolution of such payment problems
could only be achieved through legislation. Subsequently, the
Development Bureau formed the Working Group on Security
of Payment Legislation for the Construction Industry to start
the preparatory work towards introducing security of payment
legislation in Hong Kong.
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While awaiting a legislative solution, the Com-SBC worked on
interim measures. When disputes have arisen, early settlement of
differences is critical not only in terms of cost savings and reducing
risks, but also in terms of the maintenance of ongoing business
and harmonious working relationships. To get this message across
to industry practitioners, the Task Force on Dispute Resolution
Documentation prepared the Reference Materials for Application of
Dispute Resolution in Construction Contracts for issuance in early
2013. A set of rules and procedures of the five dispute resolution
mechanisms were proposed to facilitate the adoption of relevant
alternative dispute resolution methods recommended in the
Guidelines on Dispute Resolution published by the CIC in 2010.

With the continuous support and involvement of major
stakeholders, the Task Force on Standard Contract Provisions for
Domestic Subcontracts completed the first round of discussions
on standard contract clauses. In the next stage, the task force will
focus primarily on addressing a number of controversial issues
raised by members representing different sectors of the industry to
ensure consensus being reached on the standard document before
its introduction.

The year also marked a milestone for the Voluntary Subcontractor
Registration Scheme (VSRS) since its introduction by the then
Provisional Construction Industry Co-ordination Board in 2003
and taken over by the CIC in 2010. The composition of the
Management Committee of the scheme was enlarged in July 2012
for wider industry representation with the number of members
increased from five to nine representing employers, main
contractors and subcontractors.

The Task Force on VSRS Stage 2 completed the review of the
scheme and introduced enhancements to the scheme effective on
1 January 2013. Apart from renaming the scheme to Subcontractor
Registration Scheme (SRS), other initiatives aimed to enhance
the integrity of registered subcontractors, facilitate new entrants to
the subcontracting industry and refine operational details, where
appropriate, to improve efficiency.

To familiarise stakeholders with the SRS, a series of promotional
activities were held in the last quarter of 2012 which were well
received. The same will continue in the first quarter of 2013. As
an industry wide self-regulatory initiative, the SRS will continue
strengthening collaboration among major industry stakeholders
for further improvement, building on the strategic communication
platform provided by the CIC.
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Objections Committee

Membership List
(as of 31 December 2012)

Convenor
Ms. CHENG Yeuk-wah, Teresa

Members

CIC Members
Prof. KO Jan-ming
Sr WONG Bay

Terms of Reference

1.To determine objections to levy and surcharge made under
section b5 of CIC Ordinance.

Committee Report

By virtue of section 56 of the Construction Industry Council
Ordinance, the Objections Committee has the power to confirm,
cancel or reduce the levy or surcharge. During 2012, there was no
objection case lodged by the contractors on the levies assessed by
CIC.

To provide guidance on the construction industry levy imposed on
the electrical and mechanical works under the CIC Ordinance, Levy
Guide No. 3 Guideline on Repair and Maintenance of Electrical
and Mechanical Works was developed to be posted on the CIC
website for the information of the industry in early 2013.
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MANPOWER TRAINING AND DEVELOPMENT
AAEIRERE

Construction Industry Training Board BiE¥KEES
Membership List RERE
(as of 31 December 2012) (201212 A31H)
Chairman EE
Ir WONG Wing-hoo, Billy EoKE TI2AM
Members j54=1
Mr. CHOI Wun-hing, Donald* BREL
Mr. CHOW Luen-kiu BEE ks
Ir HO Ngai-leung, Albert A% R Ti2AD
Ir KWAN Po-jen, Helen HEY TiEf
Sr LAl Yuk-fai, Stephen FEIBHE CBIEAD
Ir LAM Tin-sing, Enoch MAE TI2AD
Mr. LI Chi-leung FFm £HE
Dr. FUNG King-keung, Michael R 18t
Mr. LOK Kwei-sang, Tandy BRZRE A
Ir SYNN Raymond-cheung SEKFR LAZRD
Mr. TSE Chun-yuen IR T4
Mr. TSE Lai-leung, Jimmy* HER LA
*Chairman of Working Group / Sub-committee * Tl MERBE TR
Terms of Reference A& E
1.To provide training courses for the construction industry. 1. [REFRMEIBRRE o

2.To establish and maintain industrial training centres for the 2. A& R R E R8P0 -
construction industry.

3.To assist, including by the provision of financial assistance, 3. B2 5ok M 1235 2 12 H AP 42289 A
in the placement of persons who have completed training o BHEIREM BRI T G T
courses provided for the construction industry. Bf o

4.To assess the standards of skills achieved by any person in any 4. FEA%(E{A] AR N iR s B2 v S 4R
kind of work involving or in connection with the construction B FELE 8 T {5 M B 3 B R Tk

industry, to conduct examinations and tests, to issue or award E o WEHERZSE TR EZ KB
certificates of attendance or competence, and to establish the EH B (SEEBPEN MK EZRE
standards to be achieved in respect of any such work. METFEHZEBHIKTE ©

5.Where it is appointed under the Construction Workers 5. iizZ &R CEES T AFMHER) (5583
Registration Ordinance (Cap. 583) as the Registrar of D) B EAZIEH T EEE T AGEM=E
Construction Workers under that Ordinance, to perform the £ - 1T 3% 16101 3k 1 ] £ b pk S0O% Bl B 7
functions conferred or imposed on the Registrar by or under K& T EEMNELRE - SRS (601 3k
that Ordinance or any other enactment. EE MR SOERIME T E Tl EES
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MANPOWER TRAINING AND DEVELOPMENT

Committee Report

The rollout of various infrastructure projects in recent years has
brought about a substantial increase in construction manpower
demand. As the Government and private sector continued
to invest, Hong Kong’s construction industry experienced an
increased manpower demand.

To cope with the labour demand more proactively, the CIC needed
short and long term strategies. In 2012, the CIC introduced a four-
pronged comprehensive manpower strategy: forecast supply and
demand; increase supply; reduce demand; and match supply with
demand.

To improve the accuracy in forecasts of labour supply and
demand, trade lists on site labour deployment returns would be
standardised to enhance the accuracy of deployment information.
The Construction Industry Training Board (CITB) also explored
ways of collecting statistics on RMAA (repair, maintenance, minor
alterations and additions). A new Construction Workers Registration
System was being developed to capture and analyse worker
registration and site entry data.

To develop long term forecasts, a dedicated research team was
established to enhance and expand the CIC Manpower Forecasting
Model to cover construction workers, supervisors, technicians
and professionals. By tapping market intelligence and the early
identification of new trades and newly awarded contracts, the
medium term forecasts were improved.

For short term forecasts, six-monthly manpower snapshot surveys
were conducted to gauge vacancies, trades, types of supervisors
and workers required. Other useful information included the
number of trainees and graduates of the Enhanced Construction
Manpower Training Scheme (ECMTS) and CIC regular courses,
the employment and placement situation of graduates, and the
number of vacancies and changes in salary in the market.

Initiatives were introduced to attract new entrants to the industry to
increase manpower supply. The CITB reviewed training allowances
and subsidies, and introduced the graduation incentive allowance.
We also offered a “Construction Vocational Cantonese Course” for
ethnic minorities to help enhance their ability to communicate with
their colleagues. Training and trade tests were offered to inmates
of the Correctional Services Department to improve their skills and
increase their possible future employment opportunities. Other
Learning Experience (OLE) was offered to secondary students to
increase their knowledge of the industry.
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MANPOWER TRAINING AND DEVELOPMENT

ANBIN R B RE

Training and recruitment opportunities were highlighted at job
fairs, roving exhibitions, school career talks, briefings to media,
advertisements on TV and radio and visits to the Construction
Industry Resource Centre. Other publicity activities focused on
enhancing the image of the industry, to promote career path
opportunities, site safety and working conditions.

The training capacity was increased in 2012 through the
acquisition of five parcels of land from the Government as training
grounds at Tai Po, Siu Lun Street, Tung Chau Street, Wong Lung
Hang and Yuen Kong. Other measures included outsourcing
appropriate training to eligible training organisations, rental of
classrooms from other training organisations, and the use of
simulators in training.

A survey was conducted to find out reasons for workers leaving
the industry and ways to attract them back. In accordance
with the survey result, a number of measures were introduced
including free skills enhancement courses, sending job information
to registered workers by SMS, and offering free trade tests for
registered general workers.

Working groups with participation from the Government were
established to explore ways to reduce demand including design,
construction practices, prefabrication and mechanisation to
minimise labour, and research and development to increase
productivity.

To work towards matching supply with demand, the CITB
continued to encourage more contractors to join the Contractor
Cooperative Training Scheme (CCTS) — to grant subsidies to
contractors to employ trainees on a “first-hire-then-train” basis and
to enable trainees to gain actual work experience on construction
sites.

Construction JobsNet (http://jobsnet.hkcic.org) was upgraded
to provide one-stop recruitment and job matching services. Job
seekers would receive SMS notifications on job vacancies after
registration. Training syllabuses, the modes of training and trade
tests were reviewed to ensure that they were aligned with industry’s
needs.

While the training schemes and training courses were being
implemented at full swing, the CITB would continue to maintain
close liaison with industry stakeholders to enhance training,
develop new training schemes to attract new blood to the industry
and other innovative ways to meet the manpower needs of the
construction industry.
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MANPOWER TRAINING AND DEVELOPMENT

Committee on Manpower Training and

Development

Membership List
(as of 31 December 2012)

Chairman
Ir WONG Wing-hoo, Billy

Members

CIC Members

Ir CHEW Tai-chong*

Mr. CHOW Luen-kiu

Prof. LEUNG Kin-ying, Christopher
Mr. NG San-wa, Lawrence

Mr. WAN Koon-sun

Sr WONG Bay

Mr. WONG Chik-wing, Mike

Ir WONG Tin-cheung, Conrad

*Chairman of Working Group / Sub-committee

Terms of Reference

1.To advise on manpower planning and development for
construction personnel at professional, supervisory and
craftsman levels.

2.7To foster an ethical culture.

Committee Report

The Committee on Manpower Training and Development
was (Com-MTD) established to provide advice on manpower
planning and development for construction personnel. One of the
Committee’s most important projects was to conduct manpower
research to develop a sustainable model to forecast the demand
and supply of construction workers, technicians and supervisors.
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MANPOWER TRAINING AND DEVELOPMENT

ANBIN R B RE

The initial manpower research and an update of manpower
forecasts for 2012 to 2016 were completed in 2010 and 2012
respectively. An enhancement study of the manpower forecasting
model was endorsed by the Com-MTD in 2012 to include
professionals in the study in addition to workers, supervisors and
technicians. Four periodic manpower forecasts over two years
would be prepared to provide information for CIC to plan its training
targets.

To explore ways of collecting statistics of repair, maintenance,
minor alteration and addition (RMAA) works, including the
construction expenditure, the types and number of supervisors and
workers, a new Working Group on RMAA Manpower Research was
set up. Representatives from relevant industry associations, trade
unions, companies and government departments joined with the
CIC on the project.

In addition, a new Working Group on Standardisation of Labour
Return of Construction Sites was set up to consult and seek
comments from industry stakeholders in relation to drafting the
standardised labour deployment record for use in different types
of works in the construction industry. These working groups will
provide valuable input to enhance the accuracy of the manpower
forecasting model.

The Com-MTD also appointed a consultant to study the definition
and scope of duties of site supervisory personnel. The study was
completed in 2012 followed by an industry-wide consultation. The
definition of site supervisory personnel and its division into nine
categories were accepted. The category criteria of each of the nine
supervisors were being developed for use in future manpower
forecasts to find out the number of supervisors in each category
and their profiles in the industry.

Starting from 2013, the functions and working groups of the Com-
MTD would be taken up by the Construction Industry Training
Board to enhance the synergy and effectiveness of manpower
forecasts and training works.
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In Hong Kong, some 90% of electricity is consumed by buildings
while electricity generation accounts for about 70% of the
greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions. As such, about 60% of GHG
emissions in Hong Kong are attributed to buildings and the
construction industry has a significant role to play in GHG emission
reduction. Reducing GHG emissions from buildings will require
overall behavioural change, as well as a rethink of the city’s
planning and design processes.

In collaboration with the Government, the CIC, as the construction
industry coordination body, has developed ZCB, the first zero
carbon building in Hong Kong. The objective of this development is
to showcase state-of-the-art, eco-building design and technologies
and to raise the community’s awareness of low carbon living.

/CB is located at Sheung Yuet Road, Kowloon Bay, surrounded by
commercial and industrial buildings. The site, previously used as
a construction training ground by the CIC, is classified as an open
space in the Outline Zoning Plan, which means any building to be
erected cannot occupy more than 10% of the site. A drainage box
culvert runs across the site, prohibiting any structure on top of it.
Those constraints together with the demand for a green leisure
space in the area, presented a good opportunity to develop the first
zero carbon building in a densely populated area.

A task force of top green building specialists, architects, engineers
and key stakeholders, was set up to steer the entire process of the
project development. Valuable input from relevant professional
institutions and stakeholders was gathered through an extensive
consultation programme.
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ZCB
E2PN:

Thanks to the strong support from the Government, stakeholders
and the dedication of the project team, ZCB was completed
in 18 months. A Grand Opening Ceremony was held on
26 June 2012, which was officiated by Mr. John TSANG, Financial
Secretary, and Ir LEE Shing-see, the Chairman of the CIC.

ZCB covers a total area of 14,700 square metres of land,
comprising a three-storey zero carbon building, and a landscaped
area. It houses the following facilities and components:

° An indoor exhibition and education area to showcase the
latest zero and low carbon design and technologies

° An eco-home to promote low carbon living

o An eco-office for staff

° An eco-cafe to promote low carbon living

° A multi-purpose hall for conferences, seminars, exhibitions
and corporate functions

° A public green leisure space

° Outdoor exhibition areas for promoting green products,
energy efficient technologies and low carbon construction
materials and for outdoor events

° Hong Kong's first urban native woodland to promote
biodiversity

° A ring path to demonstrate the concept and principles of
“One-planet Living”
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ZCB reflects careful consideration of the interrelationships between
the natural world and the built environment, with a primary design
goal of minimising energy use and generating electricity on site (and
even produce more than its own need) from renewable sources. To
achieve zero carbon emissions, ZCB adopts an integrated design,
based on an energy hierarchy approach and the following eco-
efficiency principles:

° Energy conservation by design
° Energy efficiency by green technologies and systems
° Efficient production of renewable energy

° Use of low carbon materials for construction

As a result, ZCB requires approximately 45% less energy for its
operation than buildings of the current standard design. It can
operate relying only on natural ventilation for more than 30% of the
time a year.

Z/CB constantly monitors itself through more than 2,800 sensing
points and a comprehensive Building Management System (BMS).
Coupled with the microclimate monitoring stations outside, the
BMS evaluates and controls the various electrical and mechanical
systems of the building for their best environmental performance.

The landscaped area has high greenery coverage and is
constructed using cool materials. As a result, it can not only
mitigate the heat island effect, but also improve the local
microclimate.

Since its completion, ZCB has won a number of prestigious awards
including the Green Building Award 2012 — Grand Award (New
Building Category), for its technical innovation and environmental
leadership, which is demonstrated by the following:

° it is the first zero carbon building in Hong Kong;

° it is the first building with grid feed-in of surplus energy
generated from renewable sources in Hong Kong;

° it includes the first native urban woodland in Hong Kong;

° it is one of the first new building projects that have been

certified to the Platinum Rating of BEAM Plus, the highest
environmental performance rating for green buildings;

° it features the first large scale use of biofuel made from waste
cooking oil for electricity generation;
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ZCB
T K

° it is one of the most comprehensive zero carbon buildings
in the world that can account for carbon emissions during
the operational stage as well as the embodied carbon of the
construction process and the major structural materials; and

° it has deployed more than 80 different technologies, some of
which for the first time in Hong Kong.

The technologies and design concepts showcased at ZCB are
generally applicable to other buildings for achieving energy
efficiency and reducing carbon emissions.

The official name “ZCB” in English and “Zfjxk” in Chinese
originated from a naming competition organised by the CIC which
attracted more than 1,700 entries from students and the general
public. The English name “ZCB” is the acronym for zero carbon
building, while the Chinese name “Zfjx k" literally means zero
carbon world.

Since its opening in June 2012, more than 11,000 people had
visited the indoor exhibition of ZCB by the end of 2012.

68

CONSTRUCTION INDUSTRY COUNCIL ANNUAL REPORT 2012

o WREHF-EREENTHIEEY A
AR S B M T R M B AR & S
EFNE EAIE P AR

o EHBOZEEIM - MOEEARERBRE
A

TR E RRAO BN R &SR A
REARZEE - DUEBRERR R « BUKHRYEDL ©

THRARMA T - EXEBREZSEPNHDE
B ERRETBB1,7000mBERTRE
THREER - TRAMAEXRTE[ZCB]
REZTHEZEY (zero carbon building) » 1A
NETE [ TR QB [EHROER | HESR -

THRRMPN2012F 6 FRERE  HEFIK -
TR EANR BN EDEBE 11,000 AKX e




Seminar a1 E

EVENTS CALENDAR
/EEjJ E TR

February
=R
23.02.2012

Construction Industry Resource Centre
cum Construction JobsNet Opening
Ceremony

BiEFEAR OERTERER

23.02.2012

Seminar on Handling Construction Work
Injury Cases and Site Safety

R TIEERR THE 2T E

March
=H

06.03.2012

Meeting with the Hong Kong Institute of
Construction Managers

HEBEEMESEH

07.03.2012

Technical Forum on NEC3 Collaborative
Contracts

¥ A2 A F% =R fimm i

BEXBE T —FEFRH
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EVENTS CALENDAR
/ﬁib E [\

: \ B March
,‘fnts/zmz 1] =h

N (5 2 11.03.2012
‘ Construction Industry Safety Award Scheme
2011/2012 Award Presentation Ceremony
cum Fun Day
(R T 2 2B ) AR
2011/2012 B FHEE

[T x G 16.03.2012
@ A Talk on Corruption Prevention for
Subcontractors with Illustrated Cases and
Regulatory Actions under VSRS
bt EmaEMEERE TR E
BEHEE

Construction Industry Council
RERHT

18.03.2012

Construction Industry Council Training
Academy Sports Day cum Fun Day

BERE e RBES R EREEA

19.03.2012

Technical Seminar on Safety of Lift Shaft
Works (Guidelines Volume 2 — During Lift
Installation Stage until Issue of Occupation
Permit and Handing Over to Developer)
TR TR 2RI g (151525
— ALK AR E E AT E R
RTPEER)
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TECHNICAL SEMINAR  %figHf a4 &
Contract Price Fluctuation System
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EVENTS CALENDAR
EE B

March
=A

21.03.2012

Technical Seminar on Contract Price
Fluctuation System (CPFS)

BRERARERMTNE

22.03.2012
CIC bth Anniversary Cocktail Reception
RBEXZSLAFES

29.03.2012

Meeting with the Chartered Institute of
Building (Hong Kong Branch)

HEFFHREERE (BADE) 80

29.03.2012 — 26.04.2012

Voluntary Subcontractor Registration
Scheme Briefing Sessions

JERBIED BEEMEEEN S
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EVENTS CALENDAR
/ﬁib E [T

April
9 A

25.04.2012

Meeting with the Hong Kong Institute of
Surveyors

HEBHNEMESS

26.04.2012

Public Seminar cum Naming Competition
Award Presentation of Hong Kong's First
Zero Carbon Building
A?ﬁﬁgﬁﬁéﬁTMLﬁﬁ%m%

€

coumer.
!E!I!

' §ﬁ§ESME§mgm§ﬁ£am

g Carbon Building

May
1A

05.05.2012
Youth Construction Discovery Challenge

BFRERRIEE

08.05.2012

Meeting with the Chartered Institution of
Water and Environmental Management

MERKGERIBETEESee
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EVENTS CALENDAR
H B B
Construction Safety Week 2012
2012FBEXZER

May
A

20.05.2012

Kick-off Ceremony for Construction
Safety Week 2012

201232 EE R 2 AR HE

B 1% B K K

Zero Accident, we Build, we Care

RE 2R ER

Construction Safety Week

REXRER

Construction Safety Week
S
> 3
I N, 3
1

20.05.2012
Construction Safety Week — Job Fair
BEELTTE — BEY

20.05.2012 — 24.05.2012
Construction Safety Week — Roving
Exhibition

BEXRRZDE — WERE
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EVENTS CALENDAR
R B

Construction Safety Week 2012

2012FBEXRZES
21.05.2012
Construction Safety Week Summit
REEREAEY
22.05.2012

Construction Safety Week Conference
EEETE AN g

23.05.2012
Construction Safety Week — Site Visit
BEELTEE — TH2E

24.05.2012

Considerate Contractors Site Award Scheme
2011 Award Presentation Ceremony

2011 FAEM A = AT S50 SR s
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EVENTS CALENDAR
/EE}J E [T

i 2 A N B 2 M
THE COMMUNITY CHEST ay

E o —ranagk LA HA
XEERBEARB RS
Corporate & Employec bution Proy me 2011/12 21.05.2012

Cheque & A
- CIC Makes Generous Donations to the

Community Chest

BERLBEHR

June
~A

01.06.2012

Meeting with Members from the Institution
of Civil Engineers

HEFET ATIZMESSH

05.06.2012 & 13.06.2012
CIC Members Meet with Panyu Delegates
ZEKEREEREEEE

07.06.2012 — 12.07.2012

Voluntary Subcontractor Registration
Scheme Briefing Sessions
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EVENTS CALENDAR
R B

June

~NA

21.06.2012
CIC Media Lunch
BEEESEETE

26.06.2012
Z/CB Grand Opening Ceremony
[ ZfR | R EE

TIRR MR E
ZCB Carb

+ 108S

July
+ A

05.07.2012

Consultation Meeting on New Dispute
Resolution Mechanism in Construction
Contracts

BIEANBRF RN TIEAER

10.07.2012

Meeting with the Hong Kong Institute of
Architects

R EEMEESH
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EVENTS CALENDAR
/EEjJ H [T

July
+ A

12.07.2012

Construction Safety Forum and Award
Presentation

BEEREN T RBREHE

[:3

16.07.2012

Technical Seminar on Safety of Lift Shaft

'; iR ke Works (During Lift Installation Stage until
B

Issue of Occupation Permit and Handing
Over to Developer) (Additional Session)
TrEE IS TR 2RI g (g%
KM EERR AR AR TEE
) (hni%)

24.07.2012
Care for New Workers Programme
24.7.2012 Launching Ceremony
Xﬁ’” PREER g (marWERATERHE B
BT AR LEE K

29.07.2012 — 30.07.2012

“Let’s Build Our Great Day”
Variety Show

[ BOEHARFLER | FERE
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EVENTS CALENDAR
EE AW
Activities on Lu Pan Patron's Day

S SCENEF B IR B

July
+ A

31.07.2012
Pay Respect to Master Lu Pan at the

Master's Temple

KB BRI TR

August
A=

01.08.2012

Lu Pan Patron's Day Dinner
BT EMERGE

23.08.2012

Meeting with the Hong Kong General
Building Contractors Association

MEBREXFERMES

24.08.2012

Meeting with the Hong Kong Institution of
Engineers

HEETRMESEH
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EVENTS CALENDAR
/EEjJ E [T

September
LA

13.09.2012

Meeting with the Hong Kong Construction
Subcontractors Association

HESRZEX > ERBEEE

20.09.2012

Meeting with the Hong Kong Federation of
Electrical and Mechanical Contractors

HEBREIIZAHSS

20.09.2012

Dinner Reception of the Hong Kong
Construction Industry to Celebrate the 63rd
Anniversary of the PRC

BEEERBEN R EARKLFBEKT 63 F
FHEBEg

24.09.2012

Meeting with Building & Construction
Authority, Singapore

HA 7 H13% Building & Construction
Authority €T
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EVENTS CALENDAR
R B

CIC Conference 2012 — “Manpower Sustainability of Construction Industry cum
Zero Carbon Building Development in Hong Kong”

2012 FREXFEMTE [ BEEASERNTHENE & 583K
EEIERE ]

September
A

27.09.2012
Pre-Conference Dinner Reception
el & AT E

28.09.2012
CIC Conference 2012
012 FREEZSWIE

October

TA

15.10.2012
Meeting with Shunde Delegates
B2 IBfR B S Ak A B & |

24.10.2012

Brainstorming Workshop for Construction
Manpower Study

BEEANERARED S
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EVENTS CALENDAR
EE B

October

tTA

31.10.2012

Subcontractor Registration Scheme
Briefing Session

DEREMEEEGNE

November

+— 5
02.11.2012

Meeting with Hong Kong and Macau
Affairs Office of the State Council

BB REBHAEEE

05.11.2012

Meeting with Representatives from the
Ministry of the Environment and Water
Resources of Singapore

BT INERIR KR BB &

07.11.2012

Subcontractor Registration Scheme
Briefing Session

DEREMEEENE
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EVENTS CALENDAR
R B

November

-

13.11.2012

Meeting with the Hong Kong Construction
Association

HELSRENEEH

16.11.2012

Subcontractor Registration Scheme
Briefing Session

D EREMHEEGNE

17.11.2012 & 18.11.2012

2012 Construction Industry Mega Fun Day
cum WorldSkills Hong Kong Competition
[2012ERE N R FEEDT BT FRE
RE |
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EVENTS CALENDAR
EE B

November

+— A8

28.11.2012

Subcontractor Registration Scheme
Briefing Session

DEBEMHEG TS

29.11.2012

Construction Industry Council Training
Academy Graduation Ceremony 2012

BE RS IRBET 2012 FEEE R

December
+=A
02.12.2012

Conference on Materials, Techniques and
Construction Management of Heritage
Architecture in Mainland China and

Hong Kong
Mt BB SRR EEM L - BRI -
SRS
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EVENTS CALENDAR
R B

December

+=A

05.12.2012

Subcontractor Registration Scheme
Briefing Session

DEEEMHEG TS

11.12.2012
CIC Annual Dinner 2012
I2FREXZSHAFEE

13.12.2012

Press Briefing on “Guidelines on the
Adoption of the Pay for Safety Scheme”

EEXFeCESRE  (FKAXNZE
sHElmIESD

B 17.12.2012
= kK Ith
ZCB Student Ambassadc ZCB Media Briefing on Public Opening
= THAMELRAEHRE (R MEINARE
)
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Electrical Works Safety & 71 T 1

TECHNICAL SEMINAR #% i #f 59 &

EVENTS CALENDAR
/EEjJ E [T

December
+=A
18.12.2012

Technical Seminar on Electrical Works
Safety

BN TRZERMINE

20.12.2012

Subcontractor Registration Scheme
Briefing Session

D EREMHEEGNE

22-23.12.2012;
25-26.12.2012; 29-30.12.2012

Z/CB Christmas Open Day
TR EEREF R B
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Independent auditor’s report to the Members
of Construction Industry Council

(Established under the Construction Industry Council Ordinance,
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region)

We have audited the financial statements of Construction Industry
Council (the “Council”) set out on pages 89 to 115, which
comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December
2012, the income and expenditure account, statement of
comprehensive income, statement of changes in fund and reserves
and cash flow statement for the year then ended and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

The Council’s responsibility for the financial
statements

The Council is responsible for the preparation of financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Construction
Industry Council Ordinance and for such internal control as the
Council determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with section 26(2) of the Construction
Industry Council Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B ZHMRE

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation of the financial statements that
give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the Council, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of
the state of the Council’s affairs as at 31 December 2012 and of its
surplus and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the Construction Industry Council
Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

21 June 2013
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CUprR e

Income and Expenditure Account for the year ended 31 December 2012

WLEEER HE20124 12831 AILEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars LA/ T )

Income PN

Levy income EE/ PN
Course fee and related income ESENE- S| ON
Trade testing income TR WA
Investment and interest income WE RFBWA
Other income EAA

Less: Vo

Expenditure s

Staff costs BEER
Training expenses HRE R
Workshop sundries THMIET H
General and administrative expenses ~ —f&1TIEE

Repairs and maintenance expenses HIEREER
Advertising and publicity expenses BEEEER

Depreciation e

Loss on disposal of property, HEYE - HES Rk
plant and equipment Rt EE

Allowance for doubtful debts RIRHEE

Less: Vo

Impairment loss on available-for-sale =B DIEA
investments reclassified from equity HERERRERE
Surplus for the year REERE

Note Fff=E 2012 2011
3 $484,521,734 $365,540,982
26,791,517 26,176,410

5,684,988 6,140,852

4 10,530,830 10,254,646

S 47,461,136 24,834,664

$574,990,205 $432,947,554

6 $216,916,923 $188,597,684
77,748,396 47,561,415

19,149,054 15,919,442

7 49,234,791 38,490,355
6,306,866 7,061,094

13,719,719 8,950,839

8 14,223,162 10,437,676
19,271 336,719

11(a) 171,888 84,591

$397,490,070  $317,439,815
$177,500,135 $115,507,739

- 8,323,892
$177,500,135 $107,183,847

Statement of Comprehensive Income for the year ended 31 December 2012

2HEWMFBE HE2012F12A31 BILEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars LA/ # T )

Surplus for the year TEERER
Other comprehensive income for the year ~ AF EHfth 2 HE Uz
Available- for- sale investments: AHEERE
- Net increase/(decrease) -NFEEEZ
in fair value FE 7 CRl) B
- Reclassification adjustment for - BIEREWRSE
impairment loss included HEFRRBEZ
in profit or loss B O BAE

Total comprehensive income for the year AN E#A 2 H Uz

Note Ffi&E 2012 2011
$177,500,135 $107,183,847

2(c)
$10,742,953 $(9,501,331)
- 8,323,892

$10,742,953 $(1,177,439)
$188,243,088 $106,006,408

There is no tax effect relating to the above components of the other
comprehensive income.

The notes on pages 93 to 115 form part of these financial
statements.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LRy TR

Statement of Financial Position at 31 December 2012

B R AR SRR TR X 20124 12 A31 H

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars LA T )

Note BffzE 2012 2011
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - HES RERIE 8 $260,933,471 $69,466,077
Held-to-maturity investments FERINHH 2R E 9 30,214,334 30,275,007
Available-for-sale investments AN EZIRE 10 42,016,499 31,273,546
$333,164,304 $131,014,630
Current assets REEE
Levy receivables JrE R 11 $40,727,268 $26,001,612
Deposits, prepayments and FIE%Ee BNEA
other receivables R EoAth FE R 1R TE 12 28,608,193 22,856,599
Cash and deposits at banks RITIRE RIFHK 13 575,640,881 589,422,876
Cash on hand FEFRE 103,000 92,000
$645,079,342 $638,373,087
Current liabilities REBEE
Accounts payables and accruals FETIRIE K FEET & A 14 $49,913,886 $43,913,365
Amount due to Construction FEfTEREZET A
Workers Registration Authority IERBRE 15 18,643,379 4,031,059
$68,557,265 $47,944,424
Net current assets REEEFHE $576,522,077  $590,428,663
Net assets EEFE $909,686,381 $721,443,293
Represented by: K&
Accumulated fund 2REES $522,445,622 $344,945,487
General reserve LB E 386,426,758 386,426,758
Investment revaluation reserve RESMHE 814,001 (9,928,952)
$909,686,381 $721,443,293

The financial statements were approved and authorised for ZAFBMEIEN2013F6 A2l HEREXZES
issue by the Members of Construction Industry Council on KEBBREREER  WHTIIALEZSHE
21 June 2013 and were signed on their behalf by: E

Mr LEE Shing-see, GBS, OBE, JP R 2KHIEE  OBE - AF#+

Chairman, Construction Industry BEEREERE
Council

Ir CHAN Siu-hung BRZALE TA2AD
Member, Committee on THEMNBEZEGKE

Administration and Finance

The notes on pages 93 to 115 form part of these financial 293 % 115 BRI BRI B« 2 —HH ©

statements.

CONSTRUCTION INDUSTRY COUNCIL ANNUAL REPORT 2012



FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
LBy R TR

Statement of Changes in Fund and Reserves for the year ended 31 December 2012

HENBESEHER 2220124124318 ILEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars LA/ T )

Investment
Accumulated General revaluation
fund reserve reserve Total
(Note (a)) (Note (b))
2EES LRRE REEHRE k)
(@) (b))
At 1 January 2011 R2011E181H $237,761,640 $386,426,758  $(8,751,513) $615,436,885
Surplus for the year AEERH $107,183,847 $- $- $107,183,847
Other comprehensive income Hip 2 - (1,177.439)  (1,177,439)
Total comprehensive income for the year AEFHEZENE $107,183,847 $-  $(1,177,439) $106,006,408
At 31 December 2011 and 1 January 2012 K201 E12831BR
20121818 $344,945,487 $386,426,758  $(9,928,952) $721,443,293
Surplus for the year AEERH $177,500,135 8= $- $177,500,135
Other comprehensive income Hiozmbis - 10,742,953 10,742,953
Total comprehensive income for the year AEEEEENE $177,500,135 $-  $10,742,953 $188,243,083
At 31 December 2012 R2012F12 8318 $522,445,622 $386,426,758 $814,001 $909,686,381

Notes: R
(a)  The general reserve has been set up to record the statutory transfer ~ (a)
of net assets from Construction Industry Training Authority. The
general reserve was created for employing the reserve in the
operations of the Council or by investing the reserve in such manner
as the Members think fit. The Members may apply the general

reserve for any other special purpose.

TRFEB IR ERLEREBERIRBOE
EFEATEY RUEBHREBERRERZS
RERZEENEEEFELIAKNERBEEN
BRSR  HREREELRE - KEAE
MEMSHRE  ERAREBHE -

KRASHREBERENAIHEEZREZERY
RRBIERANRAFEEREERRBEEIBR
B 2(c) ABR ©

(b)  The investment revaluation reserve comprises the cumulative net  (b)
change in the fair value of available-for-sale investments held at the
end of the reporting period and is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policy in note 2(c).

The notes on pages 93 to 115 form part of these financial
statements.

F£93E 115 AWM B AR BT 2 — 861D °

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 December 2012

BEEREXR HE2012F12A31BLEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars LA7&#5t)

Note ffizF 2012 2011
Operating activities EEEY
Surplus for the year REE R $177,500,135  $107,183,847
Adjustments for: .
Allowance for doubtful debts RIRZE 171,888 84,591
Depreciation e 14,223,162 10,437,676
Investment and interest income & M A BHA (10,530,830) (10,254,646)
Loss on disposal of property, HEME - #eE R
plant and equipment i BB 19,271 336,719
Impairment loss on WrESEH D EAAH
available-for-sale investments HERERBIEEE
reclassified from equity - 8,323,892
Operating cash inflow before changes  REH&EEESL#E
in working capital ZEEBRSHRE $181,383,626  $116,112,079

BT —FEFR
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LRy TR

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 December 2012 (continued)

HEHRER HE2011F12 831 BILFEE (8)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars LA T )

Increase in levy receivables

Increase in deposits, prepayments
and other receivables

Increase in accounts payables and
accruals

Decrease in amounts for staff
termination gratuities

Increase in amount due to
Construction Workers
Registration Authority

Net cash generated from
operating activities

Investing activities

Increase in bank deposits with
original maturity over three months

Interest received

Dividend received from
available-for-sale investments

Purchase of property,
plant and equipment

Proceeds from derecognition of
held-to-maturity investments

Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Net cash used in investing activities

Net decrease in cash and
cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents
at 1 January

Cash and cash equivalents
at 31 December

Analysis of the balances of cash and
cash equivalents

Cash and deposits at banks

Cash on hand

Less: Bank deposits with original
maturity over three months

Note BffzE

JE IR R R N
e BENERAK

Ho A FE IR TB 32 11
FEATIRIE K

FERTE AL N
BE L mNe

R
BIEET AGEM

EIE R RIE N

RELEEDHZ
BEFH

REEY
BRRBE=A
BHZ SRITER

Y ER A B

Y ER AT 44 1 65
BREZIE
YNYE R TN E

HHRER R ERHA
2B TSR

HEE - ez
REFT1SR

RRBREED 2R EFHE

RERERREEAR
B

1TR1BEZRER
ZERREEAE

12831 B2BER
ZERSEE
ReRZEARSER
B2

RITRS RER 13
FERS

W RiBB3EA
582 SRR 13

2012 2011
(14,897,544) (7,739,467)
(6,666,616) (8,535,478)
6,000,521 17,631,551
= (250,002)

14,612,320 2,287,647
$180,432,307 $119,506,330

$(299,872,524)
9,682,819

1,823,706

(205,709,827)

$(170,107,476)
8,132,546

1,421,972

(62,218,186)

= 10,000,000
- 500
$(494,075,826) $(212,770,644)
$(313,643,519)  $(93,264,314)
419,347,400 512,611,714
$105,703,881 $419,347,400
$575,640,881 $589,422,876
103,000 92,000
$575,743,881 $589,514,876

(470,040,000)

(170,167,476)

$105,703,881

$419,347,400

The notes on pages 93 to 115 form part of these financial

statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS epesccinsore g s

1. General

The Construction Industry Council (the “Council”) was established
as a statutory body on 1 February 2007 in Hong Kong under
the Construction Industry Council Ordinance (“the Ordinance”).
The Council is a non-profit making organisation and acts as an
industry co-ordinating body. Its principal functions are to forge
consensus on long-term strategic issues, convey the industry’s
needs and aspirations to the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region Government (the “Government”), as well as provide a
communication channel for the Government to solicit advice on all
construction-related matters. In order to propagate improvements
across the entire industry, the Council is empowered to formulate
codes of conduct, administer registration and rating schemes,
steer forward research and manpower development, provide and
co-ordinate training courses, facilitate adoption of construction
standards, promote good practices and compile performance
indicators and make recommendations with respect to the rate of
the levy.

The address of the registered office of the Council is located at
15/F, Allied Kajima Building, 138 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong
Kong.

2. Significant accounting policies
(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”), which collective term includes all applicable
individual HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
and the requirements of the Ordinance. A summary of the
significant accounting policies adopted by the Council is set
out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs
that are first effective for the current accounting period of the
Council. However, none of these developments are relevant to
the Council’s financial statements.

The Council has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period (note 22).

Ezl-i%ﬁ’%% Bﬁ% (LE#ET)

1. HERE

riEXRZE (AEg) 2RE GEEXZT R
KGN K200 752 A1 BEBFBKILA
EEHRRE - ARG/ FEENER - RIES
ERANGERE -  EXEREERRERKMN
EERBERE  REBRIITREBA (BA)
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2. TESEBR
() BAHR 2B

R BHREBIBTEERAN (BB BHRE
B WHRBEEMEENEAN(ES
BIEHREER) ABEBCHMASBMH
CRBGERD) kZE B —KRTH
SR AR GREEEZEEM) MEX
MRS - XeFSAMFEANEE ST BERM
ZAHHIT o

FEEMMASCEMET RHEERES
TR B R AR 23 MAERTH (BB
BmEEL) - AMBLBRED - WE—
REZRENVEREAM -

=R E IR FET R R A A (]
g kg (FfRE22) o

BEXZRE T _FEFH

93



94

N UTES TU TH E FI NAN c IAI. STATEM E NTS (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (continued)
B MRMIEE coemn @

(b)

(c)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except that the
financial instruments classified as available-for-sale financial
assets are stated at their fair values as explained in the
accounting policy set out in note 2(c).

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is also the functional currency of the Council.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires the Council to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and various other factors that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the
results of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.

Investments in debt and equity securities

Investments in debt and equity securities are initially stated
at fair value, which are their transaction prices unless
fair value can be more reliably estimated using valuation
techniques whose variables include only data from observable
markets. Cost includes attributable transaction costs. These
investments are subsequently accounted for as follows,
depending on their classification:

Dated debt securities that the Council has the positive ability
and intention to hold to maturity are classified as held-to-
maturity securities. Held-to-maturity securities are stated at
amortised cost less impairment losses (see note 2(e)(i)).

CONSTRUCTION INDUSTRY COUNCIL ANNUAL REPORT 2012
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(d)

NUTES TU THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (continued)

Other investments in securities, being those held for non-
trading purpose, are classified as available-for-sale securities.
At the end of each reporting period the fair value is
remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss being recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated separately
in equity in the investment revaluation reserve, except foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from changes in the
amortised cost of monetary items such as debt securities
which are recognised directly in profit or loss. Dividend
income from these investments is recognised in profit or
loss in accordance with the policy set out in note 2(I)(iv)
and, where these investments are interest-bearing, interest
calculated using the effective interest method is recognised in
profit or loss in accordance with the policy set out in note 2(I)
(v). When these investments are derecognised or impaired (see
note 2(e)(i)), the cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from
equity to profit or loss.

Investments are recognised/derecognised on the date the
Council commits to purchase/sell the investments or they
expire.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see note
2(e)(ii)).

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant and
equipment includes the cost of materials, direct labour, the
initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs of dismantling
and removing the items and restoring the site on which they
are located, and an appropriate proportion of production
overheads.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual
value, if any, using the straight line method over their
estimated useful lives as follows:

- Building and premises 10 - 25 years
- Motor vehicles 5 years
- Computer equipment 3 -5 years
- Renovation and building facilities 5 years
- Furniture and fixtures 10 years
- Facilities, tools, machinery 5 years
and workshop equipment
- Other equipment 10 years

(d)
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N UTES TU TH E FI NAN c IAI. STATEM E NTS (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (continued)
B MRMIEE coemn @

(e)

(1)

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any,
are reviewed annually.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an
item of property, plant and equipment are determined as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item and are recognised in profit or loss on the
date of retirement or disposal.

Impairment of assets

Impalrment of investments in debt and equity securities and
other receivables

Investments in debt and equity securities and receivables
that are stated at cost or amortised cost or are classified as
available-for-sale securities are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period to determine whether there is objective
evidence of impairment. Objective evidence of impairment
includes observable data that comes to the attention of the
Council about one or more of the following loss events:

significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments;

- it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an adverse
effect on the debtor; and

- a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an
investment in an equity instrument below its cost.

CONSTRUCTION INDUSTRY COUNCIL ANNUAL REPORT 2012
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N UTES TU TH E F I NAN c IAI. STATE M ENTS (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (continued)

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is determined
and recognised as follows:

For receivables and other financial assets carried at
amortised cost, the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e.
the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition
of these assets), where the effect of discounting is
material. This assessment is made collectively where
these financial assets share similar risk characteristics,
such as similar past due status, and have not been
individually assessed as impaired. Future cash flows
for financial assets which are assessed for impairment
collectively are based on historical loss experience
for assets with credit risk characteristics similar to the
collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be linked
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognised, the impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss. A reversal of an impairment loss
shall not result in the asset’s carrying amount exceeding
that which would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior years.

For available-for-sale securities, the cumulative loss
that has been recognised in the investment revaluation
reserve is reclassified to profit or loss. The amount of
the cumulative loss that is recognised in profit or loss is
the difference between the acquisition cost (net of any
principal repayment and amortisation) and current fair
value, less any impairment loss on that asset previously
recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss in respect
of available-for-sale equity securities are not reversed
through profit or loss. Any subsequent increase in
the fair value of such assets is recognised in other
comprehensive income.
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N UTES TU TH E F I NAN c IAI. STATEM E NTS (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (continued)
B MRMIEE coemn @

()

Impairment losses in respect of available-for-sale debt
securities are reversed if the subsequent increase in fair
value can be objectively related to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised. Reversals of
impairment losses in such circumstances are recognised
in profit or loss.

Impairment losses are written off against the corresponding
assets directly, except for impairment losses recognised in
respect of levy receivables, whose recovery is considered
doubtful but not remote. In this case, the impairment losses
for doubtful debts are recorded using an allowance account.
When the Council is satisfied that recovery is remote, the
amount considered irrecoverable is written off against levy
receivables directly and any amounts held in the allowance
account relating to that debt are reversed. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously charged to the allowance
account are reversed against the allowance account. Other
changes in the allowance account and subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off directly are recognised in
profit or loss.

Impalrment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period to identify indications that
the property, plant and equipment may be impaired or, an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists or may
have decreased.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated.

- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater
of its fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.
Where an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets, the recoverable
amount is determined for the smallest group of assets
that generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-
generating unit).
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(f)

(2)

(h)

NUTES TU THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (continued)

- Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss if the
carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-generating unit
to which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash-
generating units are allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the cash-generating
unit (or group of units) and then, to reduce the carrying
amount of the other assets in the unit (or group of units)
on a pro rata basis, except that the carrying value of an
asset will not be reduced below its individual fair value
less costs to sell, or value in use, if determinable.

- Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the asset’s
carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised in prior years.
Reversals of impairment losses are credited to profit or
loss in the year in which the reversals are recognised.

Receivables

Receivables are initially recognised at fair value and thereafter
stated at amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts (see note 2(e)
().

Payables

Payables are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently
stated at amortised cost unless the effect of discounting would
be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having
been within three months of maturity at acquisition.

(f)

(g)

(h)

B RRMT oemsr) a0

- OREBENER
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ATAEBRSEN (H—ETEREE
) BB IREE - &R HURE
BUEMEEMNREE HEERD
ETSERERNEER X FEER
EHERAKEREENEE (FF
BARAREEBR TEE)

- OREERAEE

AHBEAREE R REERER RN
BNEE - AgREIRERSR -

BB 75 18 B 738 [l PR 1A 7 4 find R A e 3R
BEBEMNMETEERTE - BE
BIEM RO g R D RO FE R

FE W i TE

EMIRIBVIARFEEER - RRERE
IR FORABE SHRC AN G IR - R E R IRBUE
B (R 2(e)) °

PSR

FERIIRIBANIA R FEERER - EL1RIARH
FRANFI MR - BRIFREIRFZEW /N R & AR AR
5IbR o

REeERkERRELEAHE

BehFTFRRABEBRERTAFER
T RITREMSREEERER - AR
PERS R M D MRS B R AZH R
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N UTES TU TH E F I N AN c IAI. STATE M E NTS (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (continued)
B MRMIEE coemn @

(i)

(0

(k)

Employee benefits

Salaries, gratuities, paid annual leave, contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans and the cost of non-monetary
benefits are accrued in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by employees.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Council has a legal or constructive obligation
arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation
and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value of
money is material, provisions are stated at the present value
of the expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
Possible obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Operating leases

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Council determines
that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset
or assets for an agreed period of time in return for a payment
or a series of payments. Such a determination is made based
on an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement and is
regardless of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of
a lease.

Assets that are held by the Council under leases which do not
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the Council are classified as operating leases.

Where the Council has the use of assets held under operating
leases, payments made under the leases are charged to
profit or loss in equal instalments over the accounting periods
covered by the lease term, except where an alternative
basis is more representative of the pattern of benefits to be
derived from the leased asset. Lease incentives received are
recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of the aggregate
net lease payments made. Contingent rentals are charged
to profit or loss in the accounting period in which they are
incurred.
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N UTES TU TH E F I NAN c IAI. STATE M ENTS (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (continued)

(I) Recognition of income

Income is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Council and the income
and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, income is
recognised in profit or loss as follows:

(i) Levy income is accounted for on an accrual basis and
is recognised upon the assessment of the value of
construction operations by the Council.

(i) Course fee and related income and trade testing income
are recognised over the year of instruction or testing.

(iii) Registration service fee income is recognised when the
services are rendered.

(iv) Dividend income from investments is recognised when
the Council’s right to receive payment is established.

(v) Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method.

(m) Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the statement of
financial position initially when there is reasonable assurance
that they will be received and that the Council will comply with
the conditions attaching to them. Grants that compensate
the Council for expenses incurred are recognised as income
in profit or loss on a systematic basis in the same periods in
which the expenses are incurred. Grants that compensate
the Council for the cost of an asset are deducted from the
carrying amount of the asset and consequently are effectively
recognised in profit or loss over the useful life of the asset by
way of reduced depreciation expense.

(1

(m)

B RRMT oemsr) a0

Iy 55 B9 HE R
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N UTES TU TH E FI N AN c IAI. STATEM E NTS (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (continued)
B MRMIEE coemn @

(n) Related parties (n) BH#A
(@) A person, or a close Member of that person’s family, is related  (a) @8 F3IIEMR - BEA TS EBERZE DAY
to the Council if that person: KEXBBZSEEBNEBAL
(i)  has control or joint control over the Council; () ¥HHSEEETHE RS
(i) has significant influence over the Council; or (i) HZSEBASATES &
(i) is a Member of the key management personnel of the (i) RESEETEEEEKE -
Council.

(b) An entity is related to the Council if any of the following (b) flefE{a] N3 —IE{&RMEES - A B HEE A

conditions applies: BEeRENEMER

(i)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person () BHEERIE () EFTIEALTATIESI
identified in (a). FERIFZEH o

(i) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence (ii) aA()EFTIEAL  HEMERASE
over the entity or is a Member of the key management K%ﬁ%ﬁ_ﬁzﬁﬁ@% (REHEE
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity). HRRE) HEEZEREKE -

ol

ﬁf%%tﬂM%fﬁié!Eﬂ¥E#4TﬁEZA LA RE
E’\JFEEEEZ@LEX TEIAIHEFENREK

Close Members of the family of a person are those family Members
who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person
in their dealings with the entity.

|]]]|] ,m]}

\
/
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N UTES TU TH E F I NAN c IAI. STATE M ENTS (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (continued)

B RRMT oemsr) a0

3. Levy income 3. BRUEA
2012 2011
Private sector L& T $222,984,497 $162,815,812
Public sector N 190,933,869 152,043,990
Others (note) Ha TR (5F) 70,264,879 50,314,872
Penalty on overdue levy tﬂs@%ﬁlﬁﬁﬁw\zgm 338,489 366,308
$484,521,734 $365,540,982

Note:Others include levy income on construction operations relating to
the port and airport development, Mass Transit Railway, Express
Rail Link, South Island Line, Penny’s Bay Railway, Kwun Tong Line
Extension, West Island Line and Shatin Central Line.

In accordance with the provisions of section 32 of the Ordinance,
a levy was imposed at the rate of 0.5% on the value of all
construction operations undertaken or carried out in Hong Kong,
for which tender has been submitted on or after 20 August
2012, and with a total value exceeding $1,000,000. Construction
operations the tender for which was submitted before 20 August
2012 and before 10 January 2010 were subject to old levy rates of
0.4% and 0.25%, respectively.

it R TiEeRA AN MESER - BBEK -
SRER  BEERR  MTEEHE  BEKL
R AREREDHRTIZARNEFEA -

BIECGEEEZSER) B2 FERESR
BT R 2012F 8 A20 HSABIERIZE
42 {B{E#R 15 1,000,000 7T Z FT A 2 iE T2
B B EE05% - BEAE2012F8 A20H
Z A &2010¢1H I0HZAIEERIZEME
BT AR ERKE (B9 51504% Kk
0.25%) é%&ﬁ@zm °

4. Investment and interest income . BRERFERA
2012 2011
Interest on held-to-maturity REIHA 2 EBZESTE
debt securities $1,381,491 $1,514,250
Interest on bank deposits TR F & 7,618,091 7,286,054
Other interest income /HJ‘@ﬂE\HﬁU\ 12 12
Total interest income on
financial assets not at fair B ARMNIEATFEE
value through profit or loss WG E ELF S A $8,999,594 $8,800,316
Dividend from available-for-sale AHEEREZIRE
investments 1,531,236 1,454,330
$10,530,830 $10,254,646
BEEEe T —HEEER
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N UTES To TH E F I N AN c IAI. STATE M ENTS (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (continued)

B R RMEE e @

5. Other income 5. HkA
2012 2011
Service fee income from RERBEFET A
Construction Workers EERMNRGEERAKRA
Registration Authority (note 19) (Ff5E19) $15,422,415 $10,500,909
Government grant BT B - 725,000
Reimbursement of
trainees’ allowances BB A 26,496,420 9,507,400
Other miscellaneous income E b FEIEUA 5,542,301 4,101,355
$47,461,136 $24,834,664
6. Staff costs 6. BREEH
2012 2011
Contributions to the defined FEHFCRINETE
contribution retirement plan R $16,302,711 $14,332,042
Salaries, wages and other benefits M - TEREAMET 200,614,212 174,265,642
$216,916,923 $188,597,684
- . - /=
7. General and administrative expenses 1. " BRITBEAR
General and administrative expenses included: —MRRITRERBS -
2012 2011
Operating lease charges: EERERRE
minimum lease payment =IEBENKE $3,166,367 $3,254,852
Auditors’ remuneration ZEETN S
- current year provision - RNEGRE 185,000 185,000
- over-provision in prior year - BIEAARE B (800) (1,100)
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N OTES TU TH E F I N AN c IAI. STATE M ENTS (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (continued)

8. Property, plant and equipment

B RRMT oemsr) a0

8. Y% - R RERtE

Cost:

At 1 January
2011
Additions
Government
grant
Disposals

At 31 December
2011

At 1 January
2012
Additions
Transfers
Disposals

At 31 December
2012

Accumulated
depreciation:

At 1 January
2011

Charge for the
year

Written back
on disposals

At 31 December
2011

At 1 January
2012

Charge for the
year

Written back
on disposals

At 31 December
2012

Net book value:

At 31 December
2012

At 31 December
2011

B

R20114
1A1R

3B

TRAF AR

HE

R20115
12A31H

R201245
1A1R

B

8%

HE

20125
12A31R

RIHE:
#2011
1A18
FER R
&R B

R20115
12A31H

R201245
1A1R

REERR

HERZER

R20124
12A31H

REFE :

R20125
12A31H

R2011 4
12A31H

Facilities,
tools,
Renovation machinery
Building and Furniture and
and  Construction Motor Computer building and workshop Other
premises in progress vehicles equipment facilities fixtures equipment equipment Total
EEYR EBIR AE ERE RER BER R - Hithk kel
BF BFRiE BEELEE T8
EHR
IERE
$5 $- $264,806  $7,333,642 $17,683,398 $480,827 $12,205,056  $2,528,558 $40,496,292
22,482,000 193,300 1,648,884 24267,696 1095094 10,619,324  1911,888 62,218,186
= - (4,608,530) - = - (4,608,530
= = (568,564) = (26,070) (111,814) (706,448)
$5  $22,482,000 $458,106  $8,982,526 $36,774,000 $1,575921 $22,798310  $4,328,632 $97,399,500
$5  $22,482,000 $458,106  $8,982,526 $36,774,000 $1,575921 $22,798,310  $4,328,632 $97,399,500
- 180,660,156 - 5930464 13,629,385 40,654 4,074,709 1,374,459 205,709,827
203,142,156 (203,142,156) - - - - - - -
- - - - - (26,180) (18,100) (44,280)
$203,142,161 $- $458,106 $14,912,990 $50,403,385 $1,616,575 $26,846,839  $5,684,991 $303,065,047
$- $- $233907 $4,480,899  $8,328,609 $114,210  $4,093,715 $613,636 $17,864,976
- 40,558 1,255,214 5,073,308 122,827 3,566,794 378975 10,437,676
= = = (300,201) = (15,147) (53,881) (369,229)
$- $- $274,465  $5,736,113 $13,101,716 $237,037  $7,645,362 $938,730 $27,933,423
$- $- $274,465  $5,736,113 $13,101,716 $237,037  $7,645,362 $938,730 $27,933,423
338,571 38660 1563259 6,854,587 158,874 4,782,315 486,896 14,223,162
= = = = (17,205) (7,804) (25,009)
$338,571 $- $313,125  $7,299,372 $19,956,303 $395,911 $12,410472 $1,417,822 $42,131,576
$202,803,590 $- $144981 $7,613618 $30447,082 $1,220,664 $14,436,367  $4,267,169 $260,933,471
$5 $22,482,000 $183,641  $3,246413 $23,672,284 $1,338884 $15,152948 $3,389,902 $69,466,077

T-"FEFRH
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N UTES TU TH E F I N AN c IAI. STATE M ENTS (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (continued)

B R RMEE e @

9. Held-to-maturity investments 9. HFEZMAZRE
2012 2011
Unlisted debt instruments FETEBRE $30,214,334 $30,275,007
The held-to-maturity investments are neither past due nor #FZEZ|EA ZIKE W M@K IELRE -
impaired.
10.Available-for-sale investments 10.HHEZKRE
2012 2011
Equity securities listed on The EEBBERXZFBRAT
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Iz RS
Limited (at market value) (LATH{ERT) $42,016,499 $31,273,546
Fair value of individually impaired BRI LR E R i 75 55
equity securities NEEE $- $24,753,509

As at 31 December 2011, the Council’s available-for-sale equity
securities were individually determined to be impaired on the
basis of a material decline in their fair value below cost which
indicated that the cost of the Council’'s investment in them might
not be recovered. Impairment losses on these investments were
recognised in profit or loss in accordance with the policy set out in
note 2(e)(i).
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NUTES TU THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (continued)

11.Levy receivables

B RRMT oemsr) a0

11. BEWRER

JEU K
W RIRER

Levy receivables
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts

2012 2011
$43,693,438 $28,820,619
(2,966,170) (2,819,007)
$40,727,268 $26,001,612

All levy receivables are expected to be recovered within one year.

The average credit period on levy receivables granted to the
contractors is 28 days after the contractor receives the notice of
assessment. Further details on the Council’'s credit policy are set
out in note 17(a).

No penalty is imposed on the contractor for the specified period
of 28 days. Thereafter, penalty is imposed at 5% of the unpaid
amount. If the amount of the levy or surcharge, including any
penalty imposed remains unpaid within three months after the
expiry of the specified period, a further penalty of 5% of the unpaid
amount will be imposed on the outstanding balance. The Council
would provide fully for all long outstanding receivables, having
considered, inter alia, the likelihood of recoverability based on
historical experience.

Included in the Council’s levy receivables balance are debtors with
a carrying amount of $423,795 (2011: $492,789) which are past
due at the reporting date for which the Council had not provided
for any doubtful debts as there has not been a significant change
in credit quality and the amounts are still considered recoverable.
The Council did not hold any collateral over these balances. The
average age of these receivables is 47 days (2011: 76 days).

P RIS TREIN —FRlkm -

AR A AR BT B B2 28 KA
BN FEZSERABRRNE—FTHE
EFIRHE17(a) °

FEHERA M) 28 R AR NEREIRR - (BB AR
PR R AR BN SRR Y 5% E’JE” 15K o AR P
Mg - BREATHEHSIR - EAERAN28X
HEEREN=EAARRER - AEEiA
BRSNS S NEIFR - Bl AR KA 5% ©
ZECREBEHBRAFEBRE SR MR - B
REHER IR IBVE ) 2 8084 -

FZeRUBRNEHRR HPIREE
$423,795 (2011 4F : $492,789) MY B R HK XK
HRNEBAEENR  m2aREKIREZ
EREXETEEAEE  BREEEHRIEA
WE - MAEBZERRIELEE ZSUE
RZERRAKELERFTEENERR - MLSE
JEW R IB R FIRER B47 K (20114 : 76K) °

——FEFR
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(a) Impairment of levy receivahles

Impairment losses in levy receivables are recorded using an
allowance account unless the Council is satisfied that recovery
of the amount is remote, in which case the impairment loss is
written off against levy receivables directly (see note 2(e)(i)).

The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts during the
year is as follows:

N UTES TU TH E F I N AN c IAI. STATE M E NTS (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (continued)
B MRMIEE coemn @

(a) BRBRZREE

FENER 2 B EEEE A EEIR P -
FRIFESRERDSERSMTEMN - B
SHEZBRWEGHRERSRE (R
2(e)(i)) °

FERRIBEEOSBIT -

At 1 January ®1A1H
Impairment loss recognised REREEE
Uncollectible amounts

written off EEi=p N El ek ]
At 31 December K12 A31 H

2012 2011
$2,819,007 $2,798,524
171,888 84,591
(24,725) (64,108)
$2,966,170 $2,819,007

At 31 December 2012, the Council’s levy receivables of
$2,966,170 (2011: $2,819,007) were determined to be
impaired. The impaired receivables related to contractors that
were either under liquidation or in financial difficulties and the
Council assessed that the full amount of the receivables to be
irrecoverable.

In determining the recoverability of levy receivables, the
Council collectively considered any change in the credit
quality of the levy receivables from the date credit was initially
granted up to the reporting date. The concentration of credit
risk is limited due to the contractor base being large and
unrelated.
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(b) Levy receivables that are not impaired

The ageing analysis of levy receivables that are neither
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired are as

N OTES TU TH E F I NAN c IAI. STATE M ENTS (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (continued)

B RRMT oemsr) a0

(b) RAEHIRIE 2 BURERR

RA N Bk & B AR A ZRRL (B M R MR B R
o

follows:
2012 2011
Current BNHA $40,303,473 $25,508,823
Less than one month BHEA DR 1 E A
past due $272,405 $87,579
One to three months w1 =3MEA
past due - 133,871
Over three months past due B EAR A 3 E H 151,390 271,339
$423,795 $492,789
$40,727,268 $26,001,612

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate
to a wide range of contractors for whom there was no recent

history of default.

12.Deposits, prepayments and other

receivables

ABBRSBERRBIRIER - F R ERE
I MR R FC B G R o

12808 E ANERKEA
FE W bR IH

Deposits and prepayments FHEESRBENER
Other receivables A FE IR I8

- Interest receivables - FEWA S

- Dividend receivables - FEWAR B

- Others - HAth

2012 2011
$3,173,436 $3,130,387
1,468,712 2,091,264

- 292,470
23,966,045 17,342,478
$28,608,193 $22,856,599

The amount of the Council's deposits expected to be recovered
after more than one year is $2,035,713 (2011: $1,906,913).
All of the other deposits, prepayments and other receivables are
expected to be recovered or recognised as expenditure within one
year. All other receivables are neither past due nor impaired.

BHERNBR  FRERNZCESEA
$2,035,713 (2011 4F : $1,906,913) - AT B E 1tb
e FENEBR URHMEWKIKRE BHG
R—FERERSERRASIHIEE - IhINEAD
FEUIR B I = B SR A

BEXZRE T _FEFH

109



110

N UTES To TH E F I N AN c IAI. STATE M ENTS (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (continued)

B R RMEE e @

13.Cash and deposits at banks

Cash and deposits at banks comprise cash and demanded
deposits held by the Council. Cash and deposits at bank carry
interest at market rates which range from 0.85% to 2.10% (2011:
from 0.74% to 2.25%) per annum.

13.BITRERFR

EFENFETREMNERBREREES LEHFER -
BEBRITRES R ERFTREAN TS EREZH
0.85% % 2.10% (2011 FA0.74% & 2.25%) °

Deposits with banks RITEK

- with original maturity - R & B
over three months Z A 31E A

- with original maturity - RIEEH
less than three months DR 31E A

Cash at bank RITIRE

2012 2011

$470,040,000 $170,167,476

80,000,000 385,000,000
25,600,881 34,255,400

$575,640,881 $589,422,876

14.Accounts payables and accruals

All of the accounts payables and accruals are expected to be
settled within one year or are repayable on demand.

15.Amount due to Construction Workers
Registration Authority

The amount is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

16.Taxation
Pursuant to section 28 of the Ordinance, no provision for taxation

has been made in the financial statements as the Council is
exempted from taxation under the Inland Revenue Ordinance.
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N UTES TU TH E F I NAN c IAI. STATE M ENTS (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (continued)

17.Financial risk management and fair values

Exposure to credit, liquidity and interest rate risks arises in the
normal course of the Council's operation. The Council is also
exposed to equity price risk arising from its investments in equity
securities. The Council’s exposure to these risks and the financial
risk management policies and practices used by the Council to
manage these risks are described below.

(@)

(b)

(c)

Credit risk

The Council’s credit risk is primarily attributable to levy
receivables and other receivables. Management manages this
risk as follows:

The Council reviewed the recoverable amount of the
outstanding balances at the end of each reporting period
to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the Council considered
that the Council’s credit risk is significantly reduced. Further
quantitative disclosures in respect of the Council’s exposure to
credit risk arising from levy receivables are set out in note 11.

Liquidity risk

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests
with the Council, which has built an appropriate liquidity
risk management framework for the management of the
Council’'s short, medium and long-term funding and liquidity
management requirements. The Council managed liquidity
risk by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash
flows.

Interest rate risk

The Council was exposed to cash flow interest rate risk
through the impact of rate changes on interests bearing
financial assets. Interests bearing financial assets are mainly
cash and deposits at banks which are all short term in nature.
Therefore, any future variations in interest rates will not have a
significant impact on the results of the Council.

B RRMT oemsr) a0

17.0%RREER AT EER

ﬁEL%LWﬂ&¢ A&ﬁ%x@% mE
B MFERBRAIS %Q\ﬁ%x%Té
M %&é%%m%\ﬁﬂﬂ o BME AT

B N EE AT AN ISR R E I BUR BT
Bl T
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FENE-RMEHERE - HERFER
BRFREY AT W [ FRIE - B OR BT AT UL [ 5R0R
EHEERERBE -t TH - ZERE
HZEMEER E%@ﬂ9°%m5%x
%H&w&fk’r“ﬁiﬁ’] SERBE T EEFH

WEER - EFIRHEE 11 °

(b) REEE @b

NBESRREENERETERNZS -
k%a@i EHENRBECRRE
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N UTES TU TH E F I N AN c IAI. STATE M E NTS (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (continued)
B MRMIEE coemn @

(d)

(e)

(1)

Equity price risk

The Council is exposed to equity price changes arising from
equity investments classified as available-for-sale equity
investments (see note 10). All of these investments are listed
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong.

Listed investments held in the available-for-sale portfolio have
been chosen based on their longer term growth potential and
are monitored regularly for performance against expectations.

At 31 December 2012, it is estimated that an increase/
(decrease) of 1% (2011: 1%) in the relevant stock market
index (for listed investments), with all other variables held
constant, would have increased/decreased the Council’s
reserve by $420,165 (2011: $312,735).

The sensitivity analysis indicates the instantaneous change
in the Council’s investment revaluation reserve that would
arise assuming that the changes in the stock market index
had occurred at the end of the reporting period and had been
applied to re-measure those financial instruments held by
the Council which expose the Council to equity price risk at
the end of the reporting period. It is also assumed that the
fair values of the Council’s equity investments would change
in accordance with the historical correlation with the relevant
stock market index, that none of the Council’s available-for-
sale investments would be considered impaired as a result of
the decrease in the relevant stock market index, and that all
other variables remain constant. The analysis is performed on
the same basis for 2011.

Fair values

Financial instruments carried at fair value

HKFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures requires
disclosures relating to fair value measurements of financial
instruments across three levels of a “fair value hierarchy”.
The fair value of each financial instrument categorised in its
entirety based on the lowest level of input that is significant to
that fair value measurement. The levels are defined as follows:

- Level 1 (highest level): fair values measured using
quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
financial instruments
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(i)

N UTES TU TH E F I NAN c IAI. STATE M ENTS (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (continued)

- Level 2: fair values measured using quoted prices in
active markets for similar financial instruments, or using
valuation techniques in which all significant inputs are
directly or indirectly based on observable market data

- Level 3 (lowest level): fair values measured using
valuation techniques in which any significant input is not
based on observable market data

The fair values of the Council’s financial instruments (other
than available-for-sale investments) approximate their carrying
amount. The Council’'s available-for-sale investments are
categorised as level 1 financial instruments. The fair value of
the Council’'s available-for-sale investments was $42,016,499
as at 31 December 2012 (2011: $31,273,546) which was
based on quoted market price in the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange (see note 10).

During the year there were no transfers among instruments in
level 1 and level 2.

Farir values of financial instruments carried at other than fair value

The carrying amounts of the Council’s financial assets carried
at amortised cost are not materially different from their fair
values as at 31 December 2012 and 2011. The carrying
amounts at amortised cost of the Council’s held-to-maturity
investments was $30,214,334 as at 31 December 2012 (2011:
$30,275,007).

(i)

B RRMT oemsr) a0

- 2 DEUESRTARNEEDS
M EME  IAEBEABEHER
AR ER A RS8R A ERM
mEE A FEE

- E3M (RERR) - MEMERBE
BIEER A R MBS BB A ERMTM

EEATEE

FEMERMIA (JHES ZRERIN
MAFEEERNSIRMERT - 28
HEERE F2AFIHEMITAE-H
ZE2012%12A318 #meaftHE®
B A FBEAESL2,016,499 (2011 4F A
$31,273,546) - EEAESBEREBE AR
SEAERARMYITE (28K 10) -

FEALEE IR RF2REHTEZHN
B o

FEA R FEEIIRZ 2B T AR FEE

201146 R2012F H12 8318 + LA #
EATIENZSCREERAE " 9
HEBAFEELSEEAEZERE - R2012
F12A318 ZERFEINHPHKENE
4 B 7N R ™ 1B & $30,214,334 (2011 4F ¢
$30,275,007) °

18.Commitments 18. 7 1E
(a) Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December (a) 2012512 A 31 A KRBT RIRES
2012 not provided for in the financial statements were RIBR 2 EAREAEMT -
as follows:
2012 2011
Contracted for 25149 $25,131,258 $216,158,477

Capital commitments relate to the acquisition or development
of property, plant and equipment.
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N UTES To TH E F I N AN c IAI. STATE M ENTS (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (continued)

B R RMEE e @

(b) At 31 December 2012, the total future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases are
payable as follows:

(b) 201212831 H » FAIBUENE
EHERRARMNNRELAHEHESR
/(1 N

Within one year R1ER
After one year 1F1EH5FA

but within five years

2012 2011
$3,451,618 $3,026,704
= 3,451,618
$3,451,618 $6,478,322

The Council is the lessee in respect of a property held under
operating lease. The lease runs for an initial period of three
years, with an option to renew the lease when all terms are
renegotiated. The lease does not include contingent rentals.

19.Related party transactions

During the year, the Council entered into the following transactions
with related parties.

e RHEEHEMFENATEA - BF
HENH SH=F  ABEGRXEEFH A
T AEEEE -  REHEETEERGT
EMSAHEE

19.FAEALRS
FREFTNRBEALRTTIRS -

Construction Workers Registration BEXET AGMERRB
Authority

- Registration service fee income - s AR TS B A YA

- Levy collection service - BERARTS B AU A
fee income

Funding support to Hong Kong HEBGEORERE
Green Building Council Limited BRAFNKEESFF

2012 2011
$14,582,415 $9,660,909
840,000 840,000
11,966,141 7,780,921

Balances with related parties are disclosed in the statement of
financial position and notes to the financial statements.
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N UTES TU TH E F I NAN c IAI. STATE M ENTS (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (continued)

20.Non-adjusting event after the reporting
period

Construction Workers Registration Authority (the “Authority”)
was a non-profit making organisation in Hong Kong. Its principal
functions were to be responsible for the administration of the
Construction Workers Registration Ordinance and the supervision
of the registration of construction workers; set the qualification
requirements for registration or renewal of registration; make
recommendations with respect to the rate of levy; and perform
such other functions as were imposed on it under the Construction
Workers Registration Ordinance or any other enactment. On 1
January 2013, the Authority was amalgamated with the Council
and the Authority was dissolved since then. All rights, assets,
liabilities and obligations of the Authority have been vested in the
Council and the principal functions of the Authority are carried out
by the Council with effective from 1 January 2013.

21.Comparative figures

Certain comparative figures have been adjusted to conform to
current year’s presentation.

22.Possible impact of amendments, new
standards and interpretations issued bhut
not yet effective for the year ended 31
December 2012

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA
has issued a number of amendments and new standards which
are not yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2012 and
which have not been adopted in these financial statements.

The Council is in the process of making an assessment of what
the impact of these amendments is expected to be in the period of
initial application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of them
is unlikely to have a significant impact on the Council’s results of
operations and financial position.

B RRMT oemsr) a0

2&?%%&%$mi%%%$

BEXTAEMEER (BER)) RFE—F
FEEFKE - ERRBMNTIEREE  REE (BE
%IAiﬁMM>mﬁﬁI¢ﬂwﬂ@b¥IA

AMEE: REAMREXEBRTE - RULEH
BREEN  REARABRENER  URET

1 CGRIEE T AEMEH) S Efmr H bk Bl i
THEMBE EEEMZSEE2013F 1A
1840 ALEERACHEE - BEERNAE
R BE - AENET HERBET M

BB EERAEE2013F1 A1 BERBE

EHRBEGT -

21. LB F

ETHEREFOEAE
Eﬁo

22. 2 EMEREZE 2012 F
12 331 AL B A R AE
%ﬂ FIEERREENT
g e
BEEABGEHmERERERD  BALHMASE
MinE TIEE] M1 2ER] BB R R KR
HE2012F12A31BILEEAM  IARAEBE
KB o

AR ARENZ5T7

AR IEHA LSBT R B EERNHPER
g -BHZEMA/L EwReERBERER -
TAIRE S B S HEERR RPN - BRE
R E -

——FEFR

115



116

ANNEX
Ffs 45

Number of Higher Paid Staff
The actual remuneration of staff Members exceeding $1,000,000
in 2011 and 2012 is shown helow:

BEHFNBEAR
ERFHEE$1,000,000 WEEABOT :

$1,000,000 to $1,800,000

$1,000,000 = $1,800,000

2012 2012
Number of Individuals BB AZL
16 16

2011 2011
Number of Individuals BB A
11 11
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